
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------x 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION   : 

: 
Plaintiff, : 

: Case No. 1:10-CV-457 
vs.  : (GLS/CFH)) 

: 
McGINN, SMITH & CO., INC.,  : 
McGINN, SMITH ADVISORS, LLC  : 
McGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP.,  : 
FIRST ADVISORY INCOME NOTES, LLC,  : 
FIRST EXCELSIOR INCOME NOTES, LLC,  : 
FIRST INDEPENDENT INCOME NOTES, LLC, : 
THIRD ALBANY INCOME NOTES, LLC,  : 
TIMOTHY M. McGINN, AND  : 
DAVID L. SMITH, GEOFFREY R. SMITH,  : 
Individually and as Trustee of the David L. and  : 
Lynn A. Smith Irrevocable Trust U/A 8/04/04,  : 
LAUREN T. SMITH, and NANCY McGINN,  : 

: 
Defendants,   : 

: 
LYNN A. SMITH and : 
NANCY McGINN,  : 

: 
Relief Defendants. and  : 

: 
GEOFFREY R. SMITH, Trustee of the  : 
David L. and Lynn A. Smith Irrevocable  : 
Trust U/A 8/04/04,  : 

: 
Intervenor. : 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------x 

NOTICE OF NINTH CLAIMS MOTION OF WILLIAM J. BROWN, AS 
RECEIVER, FOR AN ORDER (A) DISALLOWING CERTAIN DISPUTED 

CLAIMS, (B) RECLASSIFYING CERTAIN DISPUTED CLAIMS, (C) 
APPLYING PREFERENTIAL PAYMENT OFFSET TO CERTAIN DISPUTED 

CLAIMS, AND (D) EXPUNGING PAPER CLAIMS 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that upon the Ninth Claims Motion of William J. 

Brown, as Receiver, for an Order (A) Disallowing Certain Disputed Claims, (B) 

Reclassifying Certain Disputed Claims, (C) Applying Preferential Payment Offset to Certain 

Disputed Claims, and (D) Expunging Paper Claims (“Motion”), Phillips Lytle LLP will 

move before the Hon. Christian F. Hummel, United States Magistrate Judge, United States 
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District Court for the Northern District of New York, James T. Foley - U.S. Courthouse, 

445 Broadway, Albany, New York 12207-2924, on November 21, 2019 at 9:30 a.m., 

seeking an Order to be entered approving the Motion.  No oral argument is requested. 

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that objections, if any, to the relief 

requested in the Motion must be made in writing, and should be filed and served upon the 

undersigned at the address listed below in accordance with the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure and the Local Rules for the United States District Court for the Northern District 

of New York. 

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that if no responses are timely filed 

and served with respect to the Motion, the Court may enter an Order granting the Motion, 

disallowing the Disputed Claims listed on Exhibit A to the Motion, reclassifying the 

Disputed Claims listed on Exhibit B to the Motion, applying a Preferential Payment Offset 

to certain Preferred Investor Claims listed on Exhibit C-1 to the Motion, and expunging the 

paper claims listed on Exhibits A, C-2, D-1, D-2, and D-3 to the Motion without further 

notice or opportunity to be heard offered to any party. 

Dated:  October 9, 2019 

PHILLIPS LYTLE  LLP 

By   /s/ Catherine N. Eisenhut                                       
William J. Brown (Bar Roll #601330) 
Catherine N. Eisenhut (Bar Roll #520849) 

Attorneys for Receiver 
       Omni Plaza 
       30 South Pearl Street 
       Albany, New York 12207 
       Telephone No. (518) 472-1224 

and  

One Canalside 
125 Main Street 
Buffalo, New York 14203 
Telephone No.:   (716) 847-8400 

Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-CFH   Document 1075   Filed 10/10/19   Page 2 of 2



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------x
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION   : 

: 
Plaintiff, : 

: Case No. 1:10-CV-457 
vs.  : (GLS/CFH) 

: 
McGINN, SMITH & CO., INC.,  : 
McGINN, SMITH ADVISORS, LLC  : 
McGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP.,  : 
FIRST ADVISORY INCOME NOTES, LLC,  : 
FIRST EXCELSIOR INCOME NOTES, LLC,  : 
FIRST INDEPENDENT INCOME NOTES, LLC, : 
THIRD ALBANY INCOME NOTES, LLC,  : 
TIMOTHY M. McGINN, AND  : 
DAVID L. SMITH, GEOFFREY R. SMITH,  : 
Individually and as Trustee of the David L. and  : 
Lynn A. Smith Irrevocable Trust U/A 8/04/04,  : 
LAUREN T. SMITH, and NANCY McGINN,  : 

: 
Defendants,   : 

: 
LYNN A. SMITH and : 
NANCY McGINN,  : 

: 
Relief Defendants. and  : 

: 
GEOFFREY R. SMITH, Trustee of the  : 
David L. and Lynn A. Smith Irrevocable  : 
Trust U/A 8/04/04,  : 

: 
Intervenor. : 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------x 

NINTH CLAIMS MOTION OF WILLIAM J. BROWN, AS RECEIVER, FOR 
AN ORDER (A) DISALLOWING CERTAIN DISPUTED CLAIMS, (B) 
RECLASSIFYING CERTAIN DISPUTED CLAIMS, (C) APPLYING 

PREFERENTIAL PAYMENT OFFSET TO CERTAIN DISPUTED CLAIMS, 
AND (D) EXPUNGING PAPER CLAIMS 

William J. Brown, as Receiver (“Receiver”), by his counsel, Phillips Lytle LLP, 

moves (the “Motion”) for an Order (a) disallowing certain Disputed Claims, (b) 

Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-CFH   Document 1075-1   Filed 10/10/19   Page 1 of 3



- 2 - 

reclassifying certain Disputed Claims, (c) applying a Preferential Payment Offset to certain 

Disputed Claims, and (d) expunging paper claims (as defined in the accompanying 

Declaration), and respectfully represents as follows:  

The Receiver files the Motion to request entry of an Order (a) disallowing the 

Disputed Claims listed on Exhibit A to the Motion, (b) reclassifying the Disputed Claims 

listed on Exhibit B to the Motion, (c) applying a Preferential Payment Offset to certain 

Preferred Investor Claims listed on Exhibit C-1 to the Motion, and (d) expunging the paper 

claims listed on Exhibits A, C-2, D-1, D-2, and D-3 to the Motion, based on the 

accompanying Memorandum of Law and Declaration of William J. Brown, as Receiver 

(“Declaration”), each dated October 9, 2019. 

RELIEF REQUESTED 

The Receiver requests that the Court enter an Order substantially in the form 

attached as Exhibit E (“Order”) (a) disallowing certain Disputed Claims, (b) reclassifying 

certain Disputed Claims, (c) applying a Preferential Payment Offset to certain Disputed 

Claims, and (d) expunging paper claims, together with such other and further relief as the 

Court deems just and proper. 
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Dated:  October 9, 2019 
PHILLIPS LYTLE LLP 

By    /s/ Catherine N. Eisenhut                    
William J. Brown (Bar Roll #601330) 
Catherine N. Eisenhut (Bar Roll #520849) 
Attorneys for Receiver 
Omni Plaza 
30 South Pearl Street 
Albany, New York 12207 
Telephone No. (518) 472-1224 

and 

One Canalside 
125 Main Street 
Buffalo, New York 14203 
Telephone No.: (716) 847-8400 

Doc #4480843.1
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Exhibit A - Broker Claims

Claim No. Last Name First Name Description Amount Paper Claims

6192 Remar & Lex Kimellen & William F FAIN SECURED SENIOR NOTES $45,997.68 Filed duplicate paper claim

6193 Remar & Lex Kimellen & William F FAIN SECURED SENIOR NOTES $18,399.07 Filed duplicate paper claim

6122 EVA RABINOVICH

TDM CABLE TRUST 06 9.25% 48 MONTHS CONTRACT 

CERTIFICATES 11/15/10 $15,000.00 Filed duplicate paper claim

6123 Eva Rabinovich FEIN SECURED SENIOR NOTES $919,953.59

Filed discrepant paper claim 

for $1,000,000

6125 Stan Rabinovich Cruise Charter Ventures, LLC $100,000.00 Filed duplicate paper claim

6126 STAN RABINOVICH

FIIN 10.25% SECURED JUNIOR NOTES DUE 

12/15/2008 $200,000.00 Filed duplicate paper claim

6127 STAN RABINOVICH

FIRSTLINE TRUST 07 11% JUNIOR CONTRACT 

CERTIFICATES DUE 05/01/12 $179,542.00

Filed discrepant paper claim 

for $200,000

6128 STAN RABINOVICH

TDM LUXURY CRUISE TRUST 07 CONTRACT 

CERTIFICATES 10% DUE 9/1/11 $185,000.00

Filed discrepant paper claim 

for $200,000

6129 STAN RABINOVICH TDMM CABLE SR TRUST 09 9% $5,434.92

6130 Stan Rabinovich FEIN SECURED SENIOR NOTES $919,953.59

Filed discrepant paper claim 

for $1,000,000

6131 Stan Rabinovich McGinn, Smith Firstline Funding, LLC $300,000.00 Filed duplicate paper claim

6132 STANLEY RABINOVICH

FEIN 10.25% SECURED JUNIOR NOTES DUE 

01/30/2009 $75,000.00 Filed duplicate paper claim

6133 STANLEY RABINOVICH PACIFIC TRUST $18,991.94

Filed discrepant paper claim 

for $24,000

6134 STANLEY RABINOVICH

TDM CABLE TRUST 06 9.25% 48 MONTHS CONTRACT 

CERTIFICATES 11/15/10 $20,000.00 Filed duplicate paper claim

6135 Stanley B & Eva Rabinovich TAIN SECURED SENIOR NOTES $454,664.29

Filed discrepant paper claim 

for $500,000

6136 STANLEY B & EVA RABINOVICH TDMM BENCHMARK TRUST 09 08% $0.00
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Exhibit B - Reclassification Claims

Claim No. Last Name First Name Description of Claim Amount Current ClassificationProposed Reclassification Explanation

4107D ADT Security Services, Inc.

Sally Edison- 

McGuireWoods LLP

No Liability, TDM Cable 

Funding LLC $3,746,151.70 Investor Claim Unsecured Claim

Claimant asserts a claim for 

unsecured contractual payment 

obligation

(Paper Claim) ADT Security Services, Inc. TDM Cable Funding LLC $3,746,151.70 Investor Claim Unsecured Claim

Claimant asserts a claim for 

unsecured contractual payment 

obligation

(Paper Claim) ADT Security Services, Inc. Prime Vision Communications LLC $3,746,151.70 Investor Claim Unsecured Claim

Claimant asserts a claim for 

unsecured contractual payment 

obligation

5328 HSK Funding Inc. 107th Associates LLC $1,030,000.00 Investor Claim

Secured Claim to the extent 

of the value of the collateral 

and Unsecured Claim for any 

deficiency

Claimant asserts a claim for 

secured debt obligation
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------x 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION   : 

: 
Plaintiff, : 

: Case No. 1:10-CV-457 
vs.  : (GLS/CFH)) 

: 
McGINN, SMITH & CO., INC.,  : 
McGINN, SMITH ADVISORS, LLC  : 
McGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP.,  : 
FIRST ADVISORY INCOME NOTES, LLC,  : 
FIRST EXCELSIOR INCOME NOTES, LLC,  : 
FIRST INDEPENDENT INCOME NOTES, LLC, : 
THIRD ALBANY INCOME NOTES, LLC,  : 
TIMOTHY M. McGINN, AND  : 
DAVID L. SMITH, GEOFFREY R. SMITH,  : 
Individually and as Trustee of the David L. and  : 
Lynn A. Smith Irrevocable Trust U/A 8/04/04,  : 
LAUREN T. SMITH, and NANCY McGINN,  : 

: 
Defendants,   : 

: 
LYNN A. SMITH and : 
NANCY McGINN,  : 

: 
Relief Defendants. and  : 

: 
GEOFFREY R. SMITH, Trustee of the  : 
David L. and Lynn A. Smith Irrevocable  : 
Trust U/A 8/04/04,  : 

: 
Intervenor. : 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------x 

ORDER APPROVING NINTH CLAIMS MOTION OF WILLIAM J. BROWN, 
AS RECEIVER, FOR AN ORDER (A) DISALLOWING CERTAIN DISPUTED 

CLAIMS, (B) RECLASSIFYING CERTAIN DISPUTED CLAIMS, (C) 
APPLYING PREFERENTIAL PAYMENT OFFSET TO CERTAIN DISPUTED 

CLAIMS, AND (D) EXPUNGING PAPER CLAIMS 

Upon the Ninth Claims Motion of William J. Brown, as Receiver, for an 

Order (A) Disallowing Certain Disputed Claims, (B) Reclassifying Certain Disputed 

Claims, (C) Applying Preferential Payment Offset to Certain Disputed Claims, and (D) 

Expunging Paper Claims; and notice of the Motion having been given to the Securities and 

Exchange Commission, each of the claimants listed on each Exhibit to the Motion, by first 
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class mail, and all parties who have filed a Notice of Appearance in this action by ECF, and 

all creditors of the McGinn, Smith entities and other parties in interest via the Receiver’s 

website, which notice is deemed good and sufficient notice; and the Court having deemed 

that sufficient cause exists; it is therefore 

ORDERED, that the Motion is approved, and it is further 

ORDERED, that each Remar-Lex Claim, together with each Remar-Lex 

Paper Claim, listed on Exhibit A to the Motion is disallowed; and it is further 

ORDERED, that each Rabinovich Claim, together with each Rabinovich Paper 

Claim, listed on Exhibit A to the Motion is disallowed; and it is further 

ORDERED, that the ADT Claims listed on Exhibit B to the Motion are reclassified 

to unsecured claims and are disallowed; and it is further 

ORDERED, that the HSK Claim is reclassified to a secured claim to the extent of 

the value of the collateral and as an unsecured claim for any deficiency in accordance with 

the Plan of Distribution; and it is further  

ORDERED, that the application of the Preferential Payment Offset to reduce the 

distributions to Preferred Investors is approved as set forth on Exhibit C-1 to the Motion 

and each of the Preferred Investor Paper Claim listed on Exhibit C-2 to the Motion is 

disallowed; and is further  

ORDERED, that each of the paper claims listed on Exhibits D-1, D-2, and D-3 to 

the Motion are disallowed; and the rights of the Receiver to object on any other basis to the 

claims of all investors or claimants is expressly preserved. 
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Dated:   ____________, 2019 

_____________________________________ 
HON. CHRISTIAN F. HUMMEL 

Doc #4480968.2
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------x
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION : 

: 
Plaintiff, : 

: Case No. 1:10-CV-457 
vs.  : (GLS/CFH) 

: 
McGINN, SMITH & CO., INC.,  : 
McGINN, SMITH ADVISORS, LLC  : 
McGINN, SMITH CAPITAL HOLDINGS CORP., : 
FIRST ADVISORY INCOME NOTES, LLC,  : 
FIRST EXCELSIOR INCOME NOTES, LLC,  : 
FIRST INDEPENDENT INCOME NOTES, LLC, : 
THIRD ALBANY INCOME NOTES, LLC,  : 
TIMOTHY M. McGINN, AND  : 
DAVID L. SMITH, GEOFFREY R. SMITH,  : 
Individually and as Trustee of the David L. and  : 
Lynn A. Smith Irrevocable Trust U/A 8/04/04,  : 
LAUREN T. SMITH, and NANCY McGINN,  : 

: 
Defendants,   : 

: 
LYNN A. SMITH and : 
NANCY McGINN,  : 

: 
Relief Defendants. and  : 

: 
GEOFFREY R. SMITH, Trustee of the  : 
David L. and Lynn A. Smith Irrevocable  : 
Trust U/A 8/04/04,  : 

: 
Intervenor. : 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------x 
DECLARATION OF WILLIAM J. BROWN, AS RECEIVER, IN SUPPORT 

OF NINTH CLAIMS MOTION FOR AN ORDER (A) DISALLOWING 
CERTAIN DISPUTED CLAIMS, (B) RECLASSIFYING CERTAIN 

DISPUTED CLAIMS, (C) APPLYING PREFERENTIAL PAYMENT OFFSET 
TO CERTAIN DISPUTED CLAIMS, AND (D) EXPUNGING PAPER 

CLAIMS  
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William J. Brown, as Receiver, declares under the penalty of perjury, 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, as follows:  

1. I am the Receiver of McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. (“MS & Co.”), 

appointed by the Court in this action pursuant to the Preliminary Injunction Order dated 

July 26, 2010 (Docket No. 96). 

2. I make this Declaration in support of the Receiver’s Ninth Claims 

Motion (“Motion”) for an Order (a) disallowing certain Disputed Claims, (b) reclassifying 

certain Disputed Claims, (c) applying a Preferential Payment Offset to certain Disputed 

Claims, and (d) expunging paper claims. 

PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND 

3. MS & Co. was a broker-dealer registered with the Securities and 

Exchange Commission (“SEC”) with its headquarters in Albany, New York from 1981 to 

2009.  From 2003 through 2010, the broker-dealer was owned by David L. Smith (“Smith” 

or “David Smith”), Timothy M. McGinn (“McGinn”), and Thomas E. Livingston.   

4. On April 20, 2010, the SEC filed a Complaint initiating the above-

captioned action (Docket No. 1).  Also, on April 20, 2010, this Court granted a Temporary 

Restraining Order (Docket No. 5), which, among other things, froze certain assets of the 

above-captioned Defendants and Relief Defendants, and appointed the Receiver as 

temporary receiver with respect to numerous entities controlled or owned by Defendants 

McGinn and Smith, including those listed on Exhibit A to the Preliminary Injunction Order 

entered in this action (Docket No. 96) (collectively, the “MS Entities”).   

5. On July 26, 2010, following a hearing, the Court entered an order 

granting the SEC’s Motion for a Preliminary Injunction and appointing the Receiver as 
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receiver, pending a final disposition of the action (“Preliminary Injunction Order”) (Docket 

No. 96).   

6. On August 3, 2010, the SEC filed an Amended Complaint (Docket 

No. 100).  On June 8, 2011, the SEC filed a Second Amended Complaint (the “Complaint”) 

(Docket No. 334).  On February 17, 2015, the Court issued its Memorandum-Decision and 

Order (Docket No. 807) (“MDO”) granting the SEC’s motion for summary judgment.  The 

Court entered judgments in favor of the SEC in 2015 (Docket Nos. 835, 836, 837).  The 

MDO was affirmed on appeal in June 2016. 

7. Generally, McGinn and Smith “orchestrated an elaborate Ponzi 

scheme, which spanned over several years, involved dozens of debt offerings, and 

bamboozled hundreds of investors out of millions of dollars.”  MDO at 7.  McGinn and 

Smith raised over $136 million between 2003 and 2010 in over twenty unregistered debt 

offerings, including the Four Funds -- FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, and TAIN -- and various Trust 

Offerings, by representing that investor money would be “invested,” when instead it was 

“funneled” into various entities owned or controlled by McGinn and Smith.  That money 

was then used to fund unauthorized investments and unsecured loans, make interest 

payments to investors in other entities and offerings, support McGinn’s and Smith’s 

“lifestyles,” and cover the payroll at MS & Co.  MDO at 7. 

A. Claims Procedure 

8. On March 9, 2012, in my capacity as Receiver, I filed a Motion 

(“Claims Procedure Motion”) (Docket No. 466) for entry of an Order approving, among 

other things, the Receiver’s proposed procedure for the administration of claims against the 

MS Entities.   
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9. On March 27, 2012, the Court entered an Order granting the Claims 

Procedure Motion (Docket No. 475), which was subsequently amended by an Order dated 

April 17, 2012 (“Claims Procedure Order”) (Docket No. 481).  Each investor and known 

creditor of the MS Entities was mailed on May 1, 2012 an Access Notice describing the 

claims process and enclosing (i) Notice of the Claims Bar Date and Claims Procedure and 

(ii) a Claim Form.  A confidential password providing access to the Receiver’s Claims 

Website at www.mcginnsmithreceiver.com (“Claims Website”) was also provided.  If an 

investor or creditor agreed with the description and amount of their claim(s) as listed on the 

Claims Website and the claim(s) were not listed as disputed, contingent or unliquidated, the 

investor or creditor did not need to take any further action.  All other investors and creditors 

needed to timely file a paper claim before the bar date of June 19, 2012, as further described 

in detail on the Claim’s Website.   

10. The Claims Procedure Order established June 19, 2012 (“Bar Date”) 

as the deadline for creditors and investors to file claims (if required) against the MS Entities.  

Claims Procedure Order at 2.  Any investor who was required to file a paper claim and who 

failed to do so on or before the Bar Date is barred, estopped, and enjoined from asserting 

such claim.  Id.

11. In accordance with the Claims Procedure Order, nearly six hundred 

creditors and investors timely filed paper claims prior to the Bar Date.  In addition, more 

than 3,127 claims of investors and creditors were included on the schedules posted by the 

Receiver on the Claims Website in accordance with the Claims Procedure Order.   

12. The Receiver conducted an initial review of the paper claims timely 

filed by creditors and investors in accordance with the Claims Procedure Order and 
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determined it was necessary to establish a reserve as to investor claims totaling 

approximately $23,617,190 since those claims have been listed by the Receiver as disputed, 

contingent or unliquidated.    

B. Plan of Distribution Process 

13. On December 30, 2015, in my capacity as Receiver, I filed a Motion 

(Docket No. 847) (“Plan Distribution Motion”) to seek approval of (i) a plan of distribution 

of assets of the MS Entities to investors (“Plan of Distribution”); and (ii) interim 

distributions to investors with allowed claims scheduled or timely filed in accordance with 

the Claim Procedure Order. 

14. On October 31, 2016, the Court entered a Memorandum-Decision and 

Order (Docket No. 904) (“Plan Distribution Order”) granting the Plan Distribution Motion, 

overruling objections, approving the Plan of Distribution, and allowing the Receiver to 

make interim distributions as set forth in the Plan Distribution Motion. 

15. Among other things, the Plan of Distribution sets forth the following 

priority of claims: (1) administrative expenses; (2) secured creditors; and (3) investors.  

Further, the Plan of Distribution provides for a reserve for disputed claims to allow the 

Receiver to make initial distributions, but to also provide for funds to be reserved until any 

objections to disputed claims can be heard and decided by final order of the Court.  As of 

July 25, 2019, $6,578,150.28 has been distributed to investors with allowed claims as a First 

Distribution.  I estimate that investors will receive, at most, a recovery ranging from 

approximately 13.5% to 21.7%, depending upon the outcome of certain claim objections.  

See Third Written Status Report of the Receiver (Docket No. 925).   
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C. Claims Motions 

16. On September 21, 2017, in my capacity as Receiver, I filed a Motion 

(Docket No. 937) (“First Claims Motion”) to seek disallowance of certain filed paper claims 

that were duplicative of the corresponding claims granted by the Receiver.  On November 9, 

2017, the Receiver filed a Statement (Docket No. 957) in furtherance of the First Claims 

Motion, adjourning the First Claims Motion with respect to those duplicative investor paper 

claims filed by investors whose Receiver-granted claims have been disputed by the Receiver.  

On December 28, 2017, the Court entered an Order granting the First Claims Motion and 

disallowing the duplicative paper claims other than with respect to those filed by investors 

with disputed claims (Docket No. 966). 

17. On February 15, 2018, in my capacity as Receiver, I filed a Motion 

(Docket No. 974) (“Second Claims Motion”) to seek disallowance of certain filed paper 

claims for which there is no basis for payment in the books and records of MS & Co.  On 

April 13, 2018, the Court entered an Order granting the Second Claims Motion and 

disallowing the paper claims.  

18. On March 19, 2018, in my capacity as Receiver, I filed a Motion 

(Docket No. 984) (“Third Claims Motion") to seek disallowance of certain claims of former 

MS & Co. brokers.  On May 4, 2018, I filed a Reply (Docket No. 1002) to the Response of 

Frank Chiappone (Docket No. 995) to the Third Claims Motion.  On March 6, 2019, the 

Court entered an Order granting the Third Claims Motion and disallowing the brokers’ 

claims (Docket No. 1043) (“Broker Claims Order”). 

19. On July 6, 2018, in my capacity as Receiver, I filed a Motion (Docket 

No. 1009) (“Fourth Claims Motion”) to seek disallowance of paper claims filed by certain 
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preferred investors  and to apply a preferential payment offset to the distributions to be made 

to preferred investors.  On August 27, 2018, I filed a Reply (Docket No. 1020) (“Reply”) to 

the Opposition filed by certain preferred investors (Docket No. 1019) to the Fourth Claims 

Motion.   

20. On October 16, 2018, in my capacity as Receiver, I filed a Motion 

(Docket No. 1025) (“Fifth Claims Motion”) to seek to apply a preferential payment offset to 

the distributions to be made to preferred investors One City Center Associates and Burton 

Fisher.   

21. On March 6, 2019, the Court entered an Order granting the Fourth 

Claims Motion and the Fifth Claims Motion, and disallowing the Preferred Investors’ paper 

claims and applying the preferential payment offset (Docket No. 1042) (“Preferential Offset 

Order”). 

22. On April 25, 2019, in my capacity as Receiver, I filed a Motion 

(Docket No. 1052) (“Sixth Claims Motion”) to seek to apply a preferential payment offset to 

the distributions to be made to investor Lesley Levy and equitably subordinating the claims 

of Lesley Levy. 

23. On May 22, 2019, in my capacity as Receiver, I filed a Motion 

(Docket No. 1056) (“Seventh Claims Motion”) to seek to apply a preferential payment 

offset to the distributions to be made to certain preferred investors that received certain fund 

redemptions. 

24. The Sixth and Seventh Claims Motions remain sub judice. 

25. On September 12, 2019, in my capacity as Receiver, I filed a Motion 

(Docket No. 1067) (“Eighth Claims Motion”) to seek to disallow certain claims asserted by 
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the Smith family, or, in the alternative, offset their outstanding judgment obligations by any 

distributions owed in connection with such claims.  The return date of the Eighth Claims 

Motion is October 31, 2019. 

D. Remaining Disputed Claims 

26. The remaining Disputed Claims may be described as follows:  (1) 

claims that should be disallowed due to the claimants’ inequitable and/or fraudulent 

conduct; (2) claims improperly classified as investor claims and requiring reclassification 

and/or disallowance; (3) claims asserted by recipients of preferential payments that should 

be offset by such preferential payments; and (4) paper claims for which there is no basis for 

payment in the Receiver’s books and records.    

CLAIMS TO BE DISALLOWED DUE TO INEQUITABLE OR FRAUDULENT 
CONDUCT 

A. Remar-Lex Claims 

27. Among the claims disallowed by the Broker Claims Order were those 

asserted by William F. Lex (“Lex”).  Lex was a registered representative at MS & Co. who 

sold $45,536,000 of MS & Co. private placements between September 2003 and July 2009.  

Third Claims Motion at 6.  The Court disallowed Lex’s claims, as described in the Third 

Claims Motion, based on Lex’s violations of the Securities Act.  Broker Claims Order at 8. 

28. Following the entry of the Broker Claims Order, I discovered that Lex 

holds two additional disputed claims that were not included in the Third Claims Motion 

(“Remar-Lex Claims”).  The Remar-Lex Claims are held jointly by Lex and Kimellen 

Remar (“Remar”) and are described in greater detail on Exhibit A to the Motion.  

Presumably in accordance with the instructions set forth in the Claims Procedure Order, 

Remar and Lex filed a paper claim for each Remar-Lex Claim (“Remar-Lex Paper 
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Claims”), which paper claims are exactly duplicative of the Remar-Lex Claims and are 

described on Exhibit A to the Motion. 

B. Stanley Rabinovich Claims 

29. In the Broker Claims Order, the Court also disallowed the claims of 

Philip S. Rabinovich (“Philip Rabinovich”), who was a senior vice president, registered 

representative, and an investment advisor with MS & Co.  As with Lex, the Court 

disallowed Philip Rabinovich’s claims based on his violations of the Securities Act.  Broker 

Claims Order at 8.   

30. As described in more detail below, in 2007 and 2009, Phillip 

Rabinovich arranged for his father, Stanley Rabinovich (“Stanley Rabinovich”), to provide 

so-called “bridge loans” to allow McGinn and Smith to close private placement offerings.  

By providing bridge loans, Stanley Rabinovich allowed certain offerings to close, at which 

time escrow could be broken and McGinn and Smith could access investor funds.  See Palen 

Dec’l. ¶¶66, 99 (describing how, after investor funds left the escrow account, they were used 

to enrich McGinn and Smith personally, or to support MS & Co. or other MS & Co. 

entities).1  In October 2007, McGinn approached Philip Rabinovich about a “bridge loan” 

necessary to secure an asset for the First Line 07 Series B private placement.  See Broker 

Trial Tr. 2091:14-18.2  Philip Rabinovich arranged for Stanley Rabinovich to make a 

$600,000 loan to satisfy the shortfall, which McGinn promised to repay two to three months 

later.  Id. 2091:22-25.  Although this transaction was characterized as a “loan” by McGinn 

1 “Palen Dec’l” refers to the Declaration of Kerri L. Palen, dated January 10, 2014, submitted in support of the 
SEC’s allegations in the Broker Proceeding, which is attached here as Exhibit 1. 
2 “Broker Trial Tr.” refers to the transcript of the public hearing held before the Chief Administrative Law 
Judge (“ALJ”) in the Administrative Proceeding commenced by the SEC on September 23, 2013 as to certain 
MS & Co. brokers (including Philip Rabinovich) (“Broker Proceeding”), an excerpt of which is attached here 
as Exhibit 2. 
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and Philip Rabinovich, there was no loan documentation and Stanley Rabinovich executed 

a subscription agreement as if he were an investor and received the same interest payments 

as other investors in Firstline 07 Series B.  Id. 3409:17-3410:5. 

31. When new investors purchased Firstline 07 Series B notes, the 

incoming funds were improperly funneled directly to Stanley Rabinovich to pay off his loan.  

In total, between April 23, 2008 and June 16, 2008, MS & Co. brokers made twenty sales of 

Firstline 07 Series B notes to pay back Stanley Rabinovich’s $600,000 loan in its entirety.  

Id. 2101: 14-24; see also Palen Dec’l. ¶ 89, Ex. 21.  At the time, the Firstline 07 Series B notes 

were more than four years away from maturing.  Id. 2109: 24-2110: 4. 

32. McGinn approached Philip Rabinovich for another bridge loan in 

January 2009 to close the TDMM Cable 09 private placement.  Broker Trial Tr. 2115: 14-

22.  Stanley Rabinovich “loaned” $250,000 to TDMM Cable 09, which, again, was treated 

like an investment, although characterized as a loan.  Id. 2116:23 - 2117:2.  As with the 

Firstline 07 Series B transaction, McGinn agreed to put $250,000 worth of TDMM Cable 09 

notes out for secondary market sales in order to improperly repay Stanley Rabinovich’s 

loan.  Id. 2117: 3-7.3  Stanley Rabinovich’s loan to TDMM Cable 09 was improperly repaid 

in full from the secondary sales.  Id. 2122: 6-12.  Both improper and illegal repayments of 

more than $850,000 to Stanley Rabinovich deceived legitimate investors that the minimum 

3 In the Broker Proceeding, the ALJ found in the Initial Decision entered on February 25, 2015 that Stanley 
Rabinovich made the $600,000 bridge loan to purchase an asset for the Firstline 07 Series B transaction and 
the $250,000 bridge loan to TDMM Cable 09 to close the offering.  Donald. J. Anthony, Jr., et al., Initial 
Decision Release No. 745 (Feb. 25, 2015), 110 SEC Docket 19, modified by Order on Motions to Correct 
Manifest Errors of Fact in the Initial Decision, Administrative Proceedings Release No. 2528 (Apr. 9, 2015), 
111 SEC Docket 5, at 59.  As a result of the Supreme Court of the United States’ opinion in Lucia v. S.E.C., 
138 S.Ct. 2044 (2018), the Initial Decision was vacated and the Broker Proceeding was remanded for 
reassignment to a new administrative law judge.  The SEC subsequently entered into a settlement with the 
brokers to avoid a re-trial.
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funding for those investments had been achieved and allowed Stanley Rabinovich to be 

repaid when legitimate investors were not repaid. 

33. Stanley Rabinovich and his wife, Eva Rabinovich, collectively assert 

fourteen disputed claims against the Receivership in an aggregate amount of $3,393,540.33 

(collectively, the “Rabinovich Claims”), as described in greater detail on Exhibit A to the 

Motion.  Stanley and Eva Rabinovich filed twelve paper claims (collectively, the 

“Rabinovich Paper Claims”), also described on Exhibit A to the Motion, presumably in 

accordance with the instructions in the Claims Procedure Order. 

IMPROPERLY CLASSIFIED CLAIMS 

34. In reviewing the records and records of MS & Co., I have discovered 

that certain Disputed Claims were classified incorrectly as investor claims at the time that 

the Claims Procedure Order was entered.  Those claims requiring reclassification are 

described in greater detail below and are set forth on Exhibit B to the Motion.   

A. ADT Claims 

35. ADT Security Services, Inc. (“ADT”) filed two paper claims 

(collectively, the “ADT Claims”), as described on Exhibit B to the Motion, asserting claims 

against TDM Cable Funding LLC (“TDM”) and Prime Vision Communications LLC 

(“Prime Vision”) arising out of a certain Assignment Agreement dated October 6, 2006 

between ADT and TDM (“Assignment Agreement”).  Pursuant to the Assignment 

Agreement, TDM purchased from ADT a certain Balloon Promissory Note for $3,165,762 

made by Prime Vision to ADT (“ADT Note”).  The Assignment Agreement included an 

agreement that, if the ADT Note were paid or subsequently sold, the proceeds would be 

divided and a portion would be paid to ADT Security.  The ADT Note has not been paid or 

sold.  Consequently, ADT does not hold or assert any other claims against the Receivership. 
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B. HSK Claim 

36. 107th Street Associates, LLC (“107th Street”), a Receivership entity, 

borrowed one million dollars (“Loan”) from HSK Funding, Inc. (“HSK”) pursuant to a 

certain Promissory Note dated October 9, 2007.  The Loan was secured by a pledge of stock 

in an entity called United Security Assurance, Inc.  The debt obligation owing to HSK was 

mistakenly described as an investor claim and was assigned claim number 5328D (“HSK 

Claim”), as shown on Exhibit B to the Motion.  The HSK Claim is a loan secured by 

collateral and should be reclassified as such and as an unsecured claim for any deficiency. 

PREFERENTIAL PAYMENTS 

37. Certain investors (“Preferred Investors”) received preferential 

payments in the form of interest payments and redemptions (“Preferential Payments”) made 

by two MS Entities, McGinn Smith Funding LLC (“MSF”) and TDM.  MSF and TDM 

were essentially “conduit entities”: funds raised from investors in various Trust Offerings 

would first be deposited into an escrow account and net proceeds then advanced to MSF or 

TDM, which was supposed to then purchase the underlying investment.  Palen Dec’l. ¶ 64.  

MSF and TDM, however, were used by McGinn and Smith to facilitate “improper and 

fraudulent transfers” between and among McGinn and Smith, personally, and other MS & 

Co. Entities.  Id. ¶ 64, 66.   

38. The Preferential Payments were made in late 2009 and early 2010, at 

the height of the Ponzi scheme and when many other MS & Co. investors ceased receiving 

any payments on account of their investments.  Four of the Preferred Investors received 

preferential interest payments from TDM starting in January 2010, going through to April 

2010.  Two of the Preferred Investors received preferential interest payments and 
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redemptions from MSF starting in November 2009, through to April 2010.  The funds used 

to make these Preferential Payments were not generated through the legitimate investment 

operations of TDM or MSF but instead were amounts raised from certain Trust Offerings or 

deposited directly by other investors or MS & Co. Entities.  Consequently, the Preferred 

Investors received Preferential Payments comprised of funds that they were not entitled to 

receive, at a time when most other investors in MS & Co. were no longer receiving 

payments on account of their investments. 

39. The Preferential Payments are set forth in greater detail on Exhibit C-1 

to the Motion.  Presumably in accordance with the instructions in the Claims Procedure 

Order, three of the Preferred Investors filed paper claims (collectively, the “Preferred 

Investor Paper Claims”), which are set forth in greater detail on Exhibit C-2 to the Motion. 

PAPER CLAIMS 

40. Generally, most investors holding Disputed Claims followed the 

Receiver’s instructions in the Claims Procedure Order and submitted paper claims exactly 

duplicative of their claims marked “Disputed” on the Receiver’s website.  In addition, other 

investors who do not hold Disputed Claims also filed paper claims, either in the exact 

amount of their Receiver-granted claims shown on the Receiver’s Website, or presumably 

because they disagreed with the amounts of their claims as set forth on the Receiver’s 

Website or because they assert claims which were not shown on the Receiver’s Website.  

These paper claims may be categorized as Discrepant Claims, Duplicate Claims, No 

Liability Claims, Non-Receivership Claims, Excluded Claims, and Untimely Claims.  I 

have examined these paper claims and have determined that there is no basis in the books 

and records of McGinn Smith to make distributions on account of these paper claims. 
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APPLICATION OF THE PREFERENTIAL PAYMENT OFFSET 

41. To apply the Preferential Payment Offset, I have used the books and 

records of MS & Co. to determine when the Preferential Payments were made, to whom, 

and from which MS & Co. entity.  The Preferential Payment Offset was then applied to the 

aggregate first distribution which would otherwise be made on account the Preferred 

Investors’ claims in TDM or MSF, as applicable.  If the Preferred Investor does not hold a 

corresponding claim in TDM or MSF, I applied the Preferential Payment Offset to their 

other claims asserted against MS & Co.   

NOTICE 

42. In connection with the service of the Motion and all accompanying 

papers, including this Declaration, I will cause to be mailed to each claimant listed on the 

Exhibits attached to the Motion a copy of the Motion and related pleadings. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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Dated:  October 9, 2019 

   /s/ William J. Brown                                       
William J. Brown  

Doc #4480144.1
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OVERVIEW OF THE MS&CO. OFFERINGS 

19. From on or about September 2003 through April 2010, MS&Co. and 

various issuers owned or controlled by McGinn and Smith raised approximately $127 

million through three types of unregistered debt offerings:  (a) at least approximately $86 

million through the Four Funds offerings; (b) approximately $34 million through the 

Trust offerings and (c) approximately $7 million through MSTF. 1  (See Ex. 3.)  

20. The Respondents were the top selling brokers of The Offerings.  They 

were collectively paid nearly $4 million in commissions to sell approximately $100.6 

million of The Offerings.2  (See Ex. 4)   

21. As discussed in detail below, the proceeds from the 26 offerings were used 

to pay investor redemptions and interest for other MS&Co. offerings; to enrich Smith, 

McGinn and Matthew Rogers (“Rogers”), a Senior Vice President at MS&Co.; to make 

loans to entities controlled by McGinn and Smith; and to invest in some performing and 

other non-performing assets.  Proceeds from these offerings were also used to support 

MS&Co.   

THE FOUR FUNDS OFFERINGS MISUSED INVESTOR FUNDS 

22. The PPMs for the Four Funds offerings stated broadly that the offering 

proceeds would be used to “to acquire various public and private investments, which may 

include, without limitation, debt securities, collateralized debt obligations, bonds, equity 

securities, trust preferreds, collateralized stock, convertible stock, bridge loans, leases, 

mortgages, equipment leases, securitized cash flow instruments, and any other 

                                                 
1 The total raised figure for the Four Funds exclude rollovers, replacement and secondary sales. 
2 The sales figures for the Respondents may also include replacement sales. 
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Redemption of Rabinovich relative Palen Exhibit 21

Date Description Investor Amount

 Cumulative 

Amount From 

Investors 

Cumulative Amount Paid to Stan 

Rabinovich  Broker of Sale

4/23/2008 Sale To Boris & Berta Kogan FIRSTLN11B  $       150,000  150,000$                  Phil Rabinovich

4/23/2008 Sale To Kate Thursby FIRSTLN11B  $         50,000  200,000$                  MAYER/LEO‐82 MAYER/LEO‐82

4/23/2008 Sale To Jeremiah Colihan FIRSTLN11B  $         25,000  225,000$                  MAYER/LEO‐82 MAYER/LEO‐82

4/23/2008 Sale To Rivi Peer‐tirosh FIRSTLN11B  $         25,000  250,000$                  MAYER/LEO‐82 MAYER/LEO‐82

4/28/2008 Sale To Anthony Bailey FIRSTLN11B  $         15,000  265,000$                  Franz Scutt

4/28/2008 Sale To Anthony Bailey FIRSTLN11B  $         10,000  275,000$                  Franz Scutt

4/28/2008 Sale To James Johnson FIRSTLN11B  $         10,000  285,000$                  GEOF SMITH

4/29/2008 Sale To Piero & Hsiu Tozzi FIRSTLN11B  $         10,000  295,000$                  COLIN MCARTHY

5/1/2008 Sale To Avram Cahn FIRSTLN11B  $         25,000  320,000$                  COLIN MCARTHY

5/1/2008 Sale To Paula Green FIRSTLN11B  $         15,000  335,000$                  Franz Scutt

5/1/2008 Sale To Paul & Arlee Maier FIRSTLN11B  $         25,000  360,000$                  COLIN MCARTHY

5/1/2008 Redemption Stan Rabinovich Check 1015 (360,000)$      ‐$                           (360,000)$                                         

5/5/2008 Sale To Andrew Greenberg FIRSTLN11B  $         20,000  20,000$                     GEOF SMITH

5/15/2008 Sale To Albert Ellis FIRSTLN11B  $         30,000  50,000$                     Frank Chiappone

5/15/2008 Sale To Robert F & Suzanne L Babcock FIRSTLN11B  $         50,000  100,000$                  Frank Chiappone

5/23/2008 Redemption Stan Rabinovich Check 1018  $     (100,000) ‐$                           (100,000)$                                         

5/28/2008 Sale To Timothy Radice FIRSTLN11B  $         25,000  25,000$                     GEOF SMITH

5/29/2008 Redemption Stan Rabinovich Check 1019  $       (25,000) ‐$                           (25,000)$                                           

5/29/2008 Sale To Kenneth Courey FIRSTLN11B  $         10,000  10,000$                     Bill Lex

5/30/2008 Redemption Stan Rabinovich Check 1020  $       (10,000) ‐$                           (10,000)$                                           

6/9/2008 Sale To Andrew M & Moira L O'shea FIRSTLN11B  $         30,000  30,000$                     COLIN MCARTHY

6/10/2008 Redemption Stan Rabinovich Check 1024  $       (30,000) ‐$                           (30,000)$                                           

6/10/2008 Sale To Robert & Judith Pugliese FIRSTLN11B  $         55,000  55,000$                     Richard Feldmann

6/11/2008 Redemption Stan Rabinovich Check 1025 (55,000)$        ‐$                           (55,000)$                                           

6/13/2008 Sale To Dawn Bortman FIRSTLN11B  $         10,000  10,000$                     Henry Lucander

6/16/2008 Sale To Joseph Timmons FIRSTLN11B  $         10,000  20,000$                     STEVE FURNO

6/16/2008 Redemption Stan Rabinovich Check 1026  $       (10,000) 10,000$                     (10,000)$                                           

6/17/2008 Redemption Stan Rabinovich Check 1027  $       (10,000) ‐$                           (10,000)$                                           

(600,000)$                                         

Source:  Bank records and investor database
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Administrative Proceedings 2/4/2014

(202) 467-9200
DIVERSIFIED REPORTING SERVICES

2 (Pages 2088 to 2091)

Page 2088

1  P. Rabinovich - Direct
2  Q.   Let's start at the back, which is page
3 505.  Four lines from the top we see Stan
4 Rabinovich, TDMM CAP 09, 9 percent, 250,000.
5 Right?
6  A.   Correct.
7  Q.   That was a bridge loan.  Right?
8  A.   Correct.
9  Q.   That was repaid.  Correct?

10  A.   Yes.
11  Q.   Let's go to page 4.  A little higher
12 than the middle of the page -- Mr. Chan, you can
13 highlight it.  Stan Rabinovich, Firstline, 11B,
14 October 29, 2007, 600,000.  Do you see that one?
15  A.   Yes.
16  Q.   That is another bridge loan.  Right?
17  A.   Yes.
18  Q.   That is repaid; right?
19  A.   Yes.
20  Q.   Let's go to page 3:  The bottom half,
21 again we see Stan Rabinovich, Firstline 11,
22 May 29, 2007, 200,000?
23  A.   Correct.
24  Q.   That is not a bridge loan?
25  A.   No.  That was a permanent investment.

Page 2089

1  P. Rabinovich - Direct
2  Q.   The last investment your family made
3 in the private placement we are looking at for
4 purposes of this hearing is May 29, 2007.
5 Right?
6  A.   Well, made an investment in
7 July 200 --
8  Q.   Sorry.  The very last line.  Page.
9 Sorry.  Stan Rabinovich, TDML, July 24, 2007.

10 You see that?
11  A.   Yes.
12  Q.   I will ask my question again now with
13 the correct date.  The last investment anyone
14 from your family made in the private placements
15 we are looking at for purposes of this hearing
16 is July 2007.  Right?
17  A.   No.  I made an investment in
18 September 2009.
19  Q.   With respect to your family, is what I
20 said correct?  The last investment was
21 July 2007?
22  MR. MUNNO:  Mr. Rabinovich is not a
23 member of his own family?
24  MS. MARLIER:  Mr. Rabinovich is
25 himself.

Page 2090

1  P. Rabinovich - Direct
2  JUDGE MURRAY:  I think the record will
3 show what it shows.  Yours is down there.  I saw
4 it; right?
5  THE WITNESS:  Yes.  My immediate
6 family or the other members of the family you
7 mentioned this morning?  There are additional
8 investments of family.
9  Q.   So you are referring to your in-laws.

10 Correct?
11  A.   My in-laws, yes.
12  Q.   Let's stick with your dad.  Your dad's
13 last investment is July 2007.  Right?
14  A.   It appears that way, yes.
15  Q.   Then if we flip to your in-laws, the
16 last one I see -- please correct me if I am
17 wrong, is page 4, Fortress, September 29, 2008.
18 Do you see that?  It is $100,000?
19  MR. MUNNO:  Would you give me a moment
20 to get there, please?  What page are we on?
21  MS. MARLIER:  Page 4, near the bottom.
22  THE WITNESS:  No.  On page 5 --
23  MR. MUNNO:  Can I find page 4 first
24 and then get to page 5?  Where are we on page 4?
25  Q.   You said you found one on page 5?
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2  A.   Yes.  TDM Verifier 09, 12/31/08 for
3 25,000.
4  Q.   That is his last investment.  Right?
5  A.   I believe so, yes.
6  Q.   Let's go back to the 600,000
7 Firstline, 11B bridge loan your father provided
8 on October 29, 2007, and that is on page 4 of
9 the sales chart if you need to look at it.

10  You testified that this was a bridge
11 loan.  What did you mean when you said it was a
12 bridge loan?
13  A.   Well, you need a little context.
14 Mr. McGinn came to me at the end of October with
15 a sense of urgency to close this particular
16 transaction.  There was a $600,000 shortfall
17 that he needed to make up in order to secure the
18 asset on behalf of our clients.  Knowing that I
19 was potentially in a position to provide him
20 that capital, he requested -- he requested the
21 investment.
22  I went back, I spoke to my father,
23 with the conditions that Mr. McGinn laid out,
24 which would be a 60 to 90-day sort of interim
25 financing that he had requested that I provide.
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2 We were comfortable making the investment based
3 on the merits of the Firstline transaction.  And
4 with the understanding that McGinn Smith --
5 Mr. McGinn would then line up permanent
6 financing within that period of time and repay
7 that loan.
8  Q.   The loan took longer than 60 to
9 90 days to pay off.  Correct?

10  A.   It took longer, yes.
11  Q.   Do you remember how long it took?
12  A.   In full it took about -- I want to say
13 about eight months.
14  Q.   Did you ask any questions of
15 Mr. McGinn as to why he felt an urgency for the
16 capital immediately and couldn't just wait for
17 the McGinn Smith sales force to, you know,
18 basically reach the offering amount that he
19 needed?
20  A.   Yeah.  He gave me the reason that he
21 needed to complete this transaction by the end
22 of October.
23  Q.   Did you have any understanding of why
24 it had to be complete by end of October?
25  A.   I believe it was in a PPM that he
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2 needed to secure the full financing by the end
3 of the month.
4  Q.   Did you get any information as to why
5 the timing was so important other than the PPM?
6  A.   Just from Mr. McGinn.
7  MS. MARLIER:  Can I have Division
8 Exhibit 549, please?
9  Q.   Mr. Rabinovich, I am going to bring

10 you a paper copy because this is a many page
11 exhibit.
12  MR. MUNNO:  What is the date of this
13 document, please?
14  MS. MARLIER:  October 29, 2007.
15  May I approach, your Honor?
16  JUDGE MURRAY:  Yes.
17  Q.   Take all the time you need to read it
18 and let me know when you are finished.
19  (Pause.)
20  MR. MUNNO:  I just want to note for
21 the record that this is a long email chain.  A
22 number of emails are included within the chain
23 that were not sent to or copied to
24 Mr. Rabinovich.
25  MS. MARLIER:  For the record, the
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2 entire email chain was forwarded to
3 Mr. Rabinovich on Monday, October 29, 2007, at
4 1:32 p.m., which we can see at the bottom of the
5 first page.
6  JUDGE MURRAY:  Maybe if you go to a
7 question it would help his review of the
8 document.  What were you going to ask him about?
9  MS. MARLIER:  I was just giving him

10 time to read it and he was going to let me know
11 when he was set.
12  A.   All right.
13  Q.   Do you recognize this email chain,
14 Mr. Rabinovich?
15  A.   Yes.
16  Q.   Do you have any doubt that you
17 received the email chain and responded to
18 Mr. McGinn regarding the email chain?
19  A.   I did respond.  I received it and
20 responded to him.
21  MS. MARLIER:  Division moves
22 Exhibit 549 in evidence.
23  MR. MUNNO:  No objection.
24  JUDGE MURRAY:  Received.
25  (So received in evidence
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2  as Division Exhibit 549.)
3  Q.   Does this email pertain to the 600,000
4 your father loaned to Firstline 11B?
5  A.   Yes.
6  Q.   When you received Mr. McGinn's email
7 of October 29, 2007 at 1:32 p.m., which is the
8 bottom of the first page, did you read the
9 emails that were attached to it, or did you read

10 the chain he was forwarding, to be more precise?
11  A.   I don't recall at the time reading the
12 full chain.  I did read it later when it was
13 brought to my attention.
14  Q.   Let's look at the chain.
15  MS. MARLIER:  Mr. Chan, could you
16 please go to the fourth page of the document.
17 One more.  One more than four.  The fifth page?
18  Q.   At the bottom there of the fifth page
19 we see Mr. McGinn is emailing with someone,
20 mcocca@stewartshops.com.  Do you see that?
21  A.   Yes.
22  Q.   Then I think if we look at the email
23 just above that it looks like that person's name
24 is Michael Cocca?
25  A.   Yes.

Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-CFH   Document 1075-10   Filed 10/10/19   Page 54 of 62



Administrative Proceedings 2/4/2014

(202) 467-9200
DIVERSIFIED REPORTING SERVICES

4 (Pages 2096 to 2099)

Page 2096

1  P. Rabinovich - Direct
2  MR. MUNNO:  Just to be clear, that
3 email is August 14, 2007.
4  Q.   If you go to the second page, please,
5 at the bottom --
6  MR. MUNNO:  You mean literally the
7 second page or second page from the end?
8  MS. MARLIER:  Page 2.
9  MR. MUNNO:  Page 2 of your exhibit?

10  MS. MARLIER:  Yes.  Correct.
11  Mr. Chan, you will need to make this
12 scroll for people on the screen because it goes
13 on to the third page.
14  Q.   At the bottom of the page Mr. McGinn
15 writes "Please journal 599,000 form Firstline
16 Trust 07 Series B.  We will be receiving an
17 incoming wire into this account today in the
18 amount of 600,000 to McGinn Smith Funding LLC.
19 Also please journal 240,000 from TDM Luxury
20 Cruise to McGinn Smith Funding LLC.  Thereafter,
21 please wire $782,812.50 to the Adirondack Trust
22 Company for credit to Stewart Shops Corp. as
23 more fully described below.  Thank you."
24  Do you see that?
25  A.   Yes.

Page 2097

1  P. Rabinovich - Direct
2  Q.   Was sending money raised from
3 Firstline to Stewart Shops a disclosed use of
4 Firstline funds in the Firstline PPM?
5  A.   Sorry.  Can you repeat the question?
6  Q.   Sure.  Was sending money raised as
7 part of Firstline, sending that money to Stewart
8 Shops, was that a disclosed use of Firstline
9 proceeds as per the PPM?

10  A.   No.
11  Q.   Same question for TDM Luxury Cruise.
12 Was sending money to Stewart Shops a disclosed
13 use of money raised from the TDML investors?
14  A.   No.
15  Q.   When do you believe you read this
16 email in its entirety?
17  A.   I was given this chain of emails by
18 Ms. Coombe at the U.S. Attorney's office.
19  Q.   Do you know approximately when this
20 was?
21  A.   It would have been around October,
22 November of 2011.
23  Q.   So at the time you received this
24 email, just to be clear, in 2007, did you not
25 read it even though you did respond to
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2 Mr. McGinn?
3  A.   Yes.  That's correct, I did not read
4 this.
5  Q.   At some point in 2008 did you put in a
6 redemption request on behalf of your dad to get
7 the $600,000 repaid?
8  A.   Yes.
9  Q.   At the time your father was redeemed

10 on the $600,000 Firstline note the sales force
11 was still selling Firstline.  Right?
12  A.   I believe they sold the second half of
13 it, yes.
14  Q.   Did you know that new customer funds
15 coming in would be the source of funding that
16 would repay your dad's $600,000 loan?
17  A.   Well, originally, my understanding was
18 that Mr. McGinn was going to line up the
19 financing.  I believe he lined up a portion of
20 it but the remaining portion went out to the
21 sales force; yes.
22  Q.   Okay.
23  A.   Per Mr. McGinn's request.
24  Q.   So, in other words, the $600,000 had
25 to be sold to other investors first for your dad
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2 to get repaid.  Right?
3  MR. MUNNO:  That is not the witness's
4 testimony.  He just testified that Mr. McGinn
5 paid a portion and Mr. McGinn put the balance
6 out to the sales force.
7  Q.   Is that your testimony?
8  A.   Not necessarily, but that is
9 apparently how it --

10  Q.   Well, is that your testimony or
11 Mr. Munno's testimony?  What do you remember --
12  JUDGE MURRAY:  Wait a second.  Can you
13 just answer her question?  What was your
14 original question?
15  Q.   So, in other words, the $600,000 had
16 to be sold to other investors first for your
17 father to get redeemed?
18  MR. MUNNO:  I object to that because
19 it is contrary to the witness's testimony.  Can
20 we have the witness's prior testimony read back?
21  JUDGE MURRAY:  Read back.
22  (Record read.)
23  JUDGE MURRAY:  What is the question?
24  MS. MARLIER:  Now let's go to --
25 should I --
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2  JUDGE MURRAY:  Do you have another
3 question?
4  MS. MARLIER:  I am going to go to his
5 grand jury testimony now.  October 6, 2011,
6 please, page 37.
7  MR. MUNNO:  A moment, please, so I can
8 get there.
9  MS. MARLIER:  Line 10.

10  MR. MUNNO:  What page is it on?
11  MS. MARLIER:  37.
12  MR. MUNNO:  Line?
13  MS. MARLIER:  10.
14  Page 37, line 10.  "Question:  What
15 did you have to do to get paid back?
16  "Answer:  I believe that Mr. McGinn
17 had to resell the note.  So, in other words,
18 they kept that allocation open so they continued
19 to sell it and when they sold it I would get
20 repaid."
21  I would also like to go to the
22 November 3, 2011 grand jury transcript.
23  JUDGE MURRAY:  Excuse me, counsel.
24 What exactly are we talking about here?  What
25 note is this now?
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2  MS. MARLIER:  This is the $600,000
3 Firstline 11B note that was held by
4 Mr. Rabinovich's father.
5  JUDGE MURRAY:  You agree with that?
6 Are you comfortable with that?
7  THE WITNESS:  I am comfortable with
8 the question.
9  JUDGE MURRAY:  Okay.

10  Q.   Let's go to November 3, 2011, grand
11 jury.  Page 12, line 1.  Here we are still
12 talking about the $600,000 note held by Mr. Stan
13 Rabinovich in Firstline.
14  Line 1.  "Question:  When you said the
15 portion he couldn't fill you mean the $600,000
16 that you provided your father's money for?
17  "Answer:  Correct.
18  "Question:  So, in other words, that
19 $600,000 had to be sold to other investors.
20 Correct?
21  "Answer:  Correct."
22  Were you asked those questions and did
23 you give those answers?
24  A.   Yes, I did.
25  Q.   Let's go to the Palen declaration,
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2 Division Exhibit 2, page 154.
3  Mr. Rabinovich, this is a chart of
4 money raised from other investors, tracked
5 through bank records, which was then used to
6 repay your father on the $600,000 note.  Do you
7 see on the top April 23, 2008 there is a sale to
8 Boris and Berda Kogen, Firstline is 11B,
9 $150,000.

10  A.   Yes.
11  Q.   You made that sale; right?
12  A.   I did.
13  Q.   When you sold the $150,000 Firstline
14 certificate to Boris and Berda Kogen, did you
15 tell them their money would not be used
16 according to the terms of the PPM?
17  MR. MUNNO:  Objection.  That
18 presupposes that Mr. Rabinovich had any
19 knowledge that it wouldn't be used.  I object to
20 the question.
21  JUDGE MURRAY:  I will overrule the
22 objection.
23  Do you understand the question?
24  THE WITNESS:  I don't understand the
25 question.
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2  Q.   When you sold the $150,000 Firstline
3 certificate to Boris and Berda Kogen in
4 April 2008, did you tell them that that money
5 would be used to redeem your father?
6  A.   Well, that money was used to invest in
7 the Firstline certificates.
8  Q.   So you didn't tell them that that
9 money was going to --

10  A.   I may have.  They are friends of the
11 family, so the Kogens were always interested to
12 know what my father was investing in.  We may
13 have had that conversation but I don't think
14 that you are characterizing it properly.  I
15 don't think it went towards repaying a loan.  I
16 think they -- they made an investment in
17 Firstline.
18  Q.   So when you said --
19  A.   They purchased Firstline, they
20 received a Firstline certificate note, they got
21 paid interest on the Firstline investment
22 according to the schedule.
23  Q.   When you said you may have had that
24 conversation with them, what did you tell them?
25  A.   I presented the opportunity, I
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2 presented the investment to them and I explained
3 to them the situation regarding this investment.
4  JUDGE MURRAY:  When you say that, did
5 you mention to them that it was likely that
6 these funds would be going to paying your
7 father's bridge loan?
8  THE WITNESS:  I don't recall
9 specifically but we may have had that

10 conversation.
11  Q.   Now, if we look below, we see a sale
12 same day to Kate Thursbee, $50,000.  That is
13 from Mr. Mayer and Mr. Leo's joint broker code..
14  Do you see that?
15  A.   I see that, yes.
16  Q.   Sorry.  I didn't hear you.
17  Did you have any conversations with
18 Mr. Mayer regarding the $600,000 bridge loan
19 that your father made to Firstline?
20  A.   We had discussed it.  He was aware of
21 it.
22  Q.   He was aware of it?
23  A.   Yeah.
24  Q.   Did he know as of this time that your
25 father still hadn't been repaid?
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2  A.   I can't answer that.
3  Q.   Did you ever tell Mr. Mayer during
4 this time period that your father still hadn't
5 been repaid?
6  A.   We may have had a conversation about
7 it but I can't recall specific dates of when we
8 would have had that conversation.
9  Q.   Did you and Mr. Mayer ever discuss

10 that the source of repayment for your father's
11 loan would be new monies raised from Firstline
12 customers?
13  A.   I don't recall.
14  Q.   Now, did your father receive interest
15 on his $600,000 bridge loan to Firstline?
16  A.   He did.
17  Q.   Do you recall the amount of that
18 interest?
19  A.   I don't.  It would have been the
20 amount stated on the PPM, so if it was the
21 11 percent note he would have received
22 11 percent for the duration of his investment.
23  Q.   What was your understanding?  What was
24 the source of funds that paid the interest on
25 your father's loan?
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2  A.   Cash flow from -- from Firstline
3 certificates.
4  Q.   Is that what McGinn told you?
5  A.   That's what -- that's how the PPM was
6 written.  Sure.
7  Q.   During this time period, the spring of
8 2008, did you contact Mr. Guzzetti to make sure
9 that your father was redeemed?

10  A.   I think I may have reminded him to --
11 to either have a conversation with Mr. McGinn or
12 to just -- just to give him a heads-up that it
13 should probably be put in the inventory and made
14 available for resale.
15  MS. MARLIER:  Division 547, please.
16  Q.   Mr. Rabinovich, would you, please,
17 review the email?  For the record, you are not a
18 sender or recipient.
19  MR. MUNNO:  The exhibit number,
20 please?
21  MS. MARLIER:  547.
22  A.   I see it.
23  Q.   At the bottom Mr. Guzzetti writes to
24 Mr. Rees and Mr. Cooper, "When can Phil R.
25 expect his money from his Firstline sales?"
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2  Then Mr. Cooper responds stating, "We
3 received another 65K today so I will be sending
4 350 to Phil's account."
5  Does this pertain to redeeming your
6 father?
7  A.   It appears like it is.
8  MS. MARLIER:  We would move 547 into
9 evidence.

10  MR. MUNNO:  Objection.  This witness
11 is not a recipient of this.  It should come in
12 through Mr. Cooper or Mr. Guzzetti.  I object.
13  JUDGE MURRAY:  I will overrule the
14 objection.  It is received in evidence.
15  (So received in evidence
16  as Division Exhibit 547.)
17  Q.   So hold that $65,000 figure in your
18 head.  Let's turn back to Division Exhibit 2,
19 page 154.  If we look at May 1st, which is the
20 day before Cooper emails Guzzetti, we see a sale
21 to Avram Kahn, 25,000; Paula Green, 15,000; and
22 Paul and Arlene Myer, 25,000.
23  Would you agree that adds up to
24 65,000?
25  A.   Yes.
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2  Q.   According to this, the same day a
3 check is cut to your dad for 360,000.  Do you
4 see that?
5  A.   Yes.
6  MS. MARLIER:  Can I have Division
7 Exhibit 28, please, and can you enlarge the top,
8 please?
9  Q.   Mr. Rabinovich, do you recognize this

10 document?
11  A.   Yes.
12  Q.   This is the Firstline Trust 07 Series
13 B PPM.  Correct?
14  A.   Correct.
15  Q.   At the top do you see it is a 60 --
16 the term is 60 months at 11 percent?
17  A.   Yes.
18  MS. MARLIER:  May I have Division
19 Exhibit 487, please?  I am going to bring up a
20 paper copy because this is a lengthy one.
21  May I approach, your Honor?
22  JUDGE MURRAY:  Yes.
23  Q.   Are you familiar -- take the time you
24 need to look at it, please.  My question is
25 whether you are familiar with this email chain.
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2  (Pause.)
3  Q.   Do you have any doubt that you sent
4 and received these emails?
5  A.   No.
6  MS. MARLIER:  Your Honor, we would
7 move Division Exhibit 487 into evidence.
8  MR. MUNNO:  No objection.
9  JUDGE MURRAY:  Received.

10  (So received in evidence
11  as Division Exhibit 487.)
12  Q.   Let's go to the fourth page.  I
13 apologize there is no page numbers on this.
14  Mr. Chan?  Thank you.
15  Q.   On March 18, 2008, 10:38 a.m., you
16 write to Mr. Ross Strickland.  I am just read
17 the last two sentences.  "The recent history of
18 these notes is that we have not had any defaults
19 or late payments of interest or principal.  They
20 have all been retired on time according to each
21 respective amortization schedule."
22  Do you see that?
23  A.   Yes.
24  Q.   At this point, March 2008 Firstline
25 11B had been out for five months.  Right?
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2  A.   Yes.
3  Q.   We saw it was a 60-month term.
4 Correct?
5  A.   Right.
6  Q.   So the 11B certificates at this point
7 are more than four years away from maturing.
8 Right?
9  A.   Correct.

10  Q.   So what did you mean when you said
11 they have all been retired on time?
12  A.   The notes I was referring to was the
13 notes that he previously referenced.
14 Mr. Strickland was an investor all the way back
15 to the original alarm notes.  You see here in
16 these communications that he repeats multiple
17 times that he's had great success with those
18 investments.
19  So I just reiterate here that the
20 history of these notes, not specifically the
21 Firstline notes but these notes in the
22 aggregate, the alarm notes have all had a
23 history of no defaults, no late payments of
24 interest and principal.  That is the reference
25 here.
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2  Q.   Are there other references to old
3 alarm notes in this email?
4  A.   Let's see.  The first email that he
5 writes, "Do you have any recent reports on
6 these?  Have there been any defaults?  I know I
7 realized that kicker.  That was part of my
8 previous investment but I didn't lose any money
9 either."

10  He is referring to the SPT.  There was
11 a kicker at the back end but the SPT trusts were
12 all retired at par.
13  Then again he makes another reference
14 on his March 18, 3:14 p.m. email.  "In any case,
15 I have a good experience with these and remain
16 interested."
17  Q.   So without --
18  A.   And there is another email --
19  Q.   Sorry.  Go ahead.
20  A.   March 18th, 5:01 p.m.  "Thanks Phil.
21 There are both no classes generally available to
22 the public.  Do the notes amortize or are they
23 interest only?  It seems the previous to me that
24 the previous ones I did were taken out and
25 repaid with sales or contracts.  Are these the
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2 same?  Keep me on your list."
3  So three examples here of success that
4 he had had with previous notes.
5  Q.   When you say the "recent history of
6 these notes" in your email, what is "these
7 notes?"
8  A.   Alarm notes.
9  Q.   You are generally speaking of alarm

10 notes going back?
11  A.   With Ross Strickland because those are
12 the only types of investments he participated
13 in.
14  Q.   Would you agree you are relying on
15 those alarm notes here to sell Firstline?
16  A.   I am just giving an example here of
17 the type of investments that he has invested in
18 in the past.
19  Q.   In an email where you are recommending
20 Firstline, correct, offering Firstline?
21  MR. MUNNO:  Objection.
22 Mischaracterizes his email.
23  JUDGE MURRAY:  Well, that is up for
24 him to say.  That is a question.
25  A.   I don't think I am saying that.  I
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2 think I am explaining what the notes are.
3  JUDGE MURRAY:  Which notes now?
4  THE WITNESS:  Now the Firstline
5 security notes.
6  MS. MARLIER:  Division Exhibit 488,
7 please?
8  Q.   This is a two-page email.  Would you
9 put the second page up first so Mr. Rabinovich

10 and others can read from the first email?
11  (Pause.)
12  A.   I see that.
13  MS. MARLIER:  And would you go to the
14 first page, Mr. Chan?
15  Q.   Read these emails and let me know if
16 you are familiar with this document.
17  (Pause.)
18  A.   Okay.
19  Q.   Are these emails that you sent and
20 received?
21  A.   Yes.
22  MS. MARLIER:  We move Division 488
23 into evidence, your Honor.
24  MR. MUNNO:  I think it has already
25 been admitted, hasn't it?  No objection.
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2  JUDGE MURRAY:  Received.
3  (So received in evidence
4  as Division Exhibit 488.)
5  Q.   Looking at the second page you write
6 to Mr. Strickland, "Initially we sold out both
7 deals.  Senior 1,435,000, and junior 2,115,000.
8 But as happens from time to time, we make some
9 available in the secondary market out of our

10 inventory."
11  Do you see that?
12  A.   Yes.
13  Q.   So here you are saying that the 11B,
14 which is the junior, has been sold out.  Right?
15  A.   At that time I believe so.
16  Q.   At the time of this email, March 2008?
17  A.   Yes.
18  Q.   But there are still notes available in
19 the secondary market.  Right?
20  A.   Correct.
21  Q.   And that includes your father's note,
22 right, for 600,000?
23  A.   Correct.
24  MS. MARLIER:  Division Exhibit 548,
25 please.
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2  Q.   Mr. Rabinovich, take the time you need
3 to read this but my question is whether you
4 received this email?
5  A.   I have read it.
6  Q.   And you received this email?
7  A.   I did.
8  MS. MARLIER:  We move 548 into
9 evidence.

10  MR. MUNNO:  No objection.
11  JUDGE MURRAY:  Received.
12  (So received in evidence
13  as Division Exhibit 548.)
14  Q.   We saw your father also loaned
15 $250,000 to TDMM Cable 09.  Correct?
16  A.   Correct.
17  Q.   Please refer to the sales chart if you
18 need to but I believe that was January 30, 2009?
19  A.   Yes.
20  Q.   Was this loan because McGinn needed
21 money to get the TDMM Cable 09 deal done?
22  A.   That was my understanding.
23  Q.   So the money was invested pending
24 completion of the deal?
25  A.   Correct.
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Page 2116

1  P. Rabinovich - Direct
2  Q.   At this point had the money raised
3 from TDMM Cable 09 investors, had it met the
4 minimum offering required by the PPM?
5  A.   I don't recall.
6  Q.   Was Mr. McGinn desperate for the
7 money?
8  A.   There was a sense of urgency again,
9 same way that we saw with the Firstline

10 transaction.
11  Q.   Did you feel pressured by Mr. McGinn
12 to make these bridge loans?
13  A.   I wouldn't call it pressure.  I wanted
14 to help Mr. McGinn, I wanted to help the firm, I
15 wanted us to secure the asset on behalf of our
16 clients.  I felt it was a good asset and we had
17 the opportunity to do it.
18  Q.   And did you feel confident that the
19 McGinn Smith sales force would be able to sell
20 enough of the TDMM cable notes to hit the
21 required offering amount?
22  A.   I felt confident that they could.
23  Q.   Okay.  And did you receive interest
24 on -- not you.  Did your father receive interest
25 on the $250,000 lent to TDMM Cable?

Page 2117

1  P. Rabinovich - Direct
2  A.   Yes, I believe he did.
3  Q.   Was it your understanding your father
4 would be redeemed on the $250,000 once the
5 McGinn Smith sales force raised the balance of
6 the money?
7  A.   Yes.
8  MS. MARLIER:  May I have Division
9 Exhibit 70, please?

10  Q.   This is a two-page email.  Let us know
11 if you need the second page as well.  Let us --
12  MR. MUNNO:  I would like the witness
13 to see the second page, please.
14  MS. MARLIER:  Why don't you start with
15 the second page, Mr. Chan, since that is how it
16 will go chronologically.
17  A.   Okay.
18  Q.   Can you go to the first page, please?
19  A.   I have read it.
20  Q.   Did you send and receive these emails?
21  A.   Yes.
22  MS. MARLIER:  We would move Division
23 70 into evidence, your Honor.
24  MR. MUNNO:  No objection.
25  JUDGE MURRAY:  Received.

Page 2118

1  P. Rabinovich - Direct
2  (So received in evidence
3  as Division Exhibit 70.)
4  Q.   Looking at this email at the bottom,
5 your email to Mr. Guzzetti May 26, 2009,
6 10:54 a.m.  The third sentence states "If you
7 talk to Tim, please get a sense from him on the
8 timing of my 250,000 refunding on the senior.
9 He had told me end of the month, which means

10 sometime this year.  Maybe this accelerates the
11 timing."  Do you see that?
12  A.   Yes.
13  Q.   When you say, "Maybe this accelerates
14 the timing," you are referring to the fact that
15 the sales force had sold out the junior tranche.
16 Correct?
17  A.   No.  I think I am referring to the
18 fact that I want Mr. McGinn to be aware of it.
19 So, him being aware of it may accelerate the
20 timing.
21  JUDGE MURRAY:  Aware of what?
22  THE WITNESS:  Aware that -- that the
23 250,000 that I lent should be put out to the
24 sales force.
25  Q.   You are responding to an email from

Page 2119

1  P. Rabinovich - Direct
2 Mr. Guzzetti.  The second page of the email,
3 where he says the subject is "TDM Cable junior,
4 11 percent done."  Do you see that?
5  A.   Yes.
6  Q.   Then you write back "While Brian
7 filled me in, I am shocked and impressed."
8  Do you see that?
9  A.   Yes.

10  Q.   Let's go back to the first page.
11 Mr. Guzzetti writes, May 26, 2008 at --
12  MR. MUNNO:  2009 I think.
13  MS. MARLIER:  Thank you.  Counsel.
14  Q.   2009, 8:58.  The time is screwed up.
15 Maybe one of you is on GMT.  It says 8:58.  He
16 writes, "Talked to Tim about your 250,000 this
17 a.m.  This is the senior, right?  Wants me to
18 put it out.  We'll probably do it tomorrow.  I
19 just want to think about what I can say. I hate
20 today.  Someone is selling."
21  Do you see that?
22  A.   I think he meant to say I hate to say
23 someone is selling.
24  Q.   When he says "wants me to put it out,"
25 that refers to putting it out to the McGinn
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Page 2120

1  P. Rabinovich - Direct
2 Smith sales force.  Correct?
3  A.   Correct.
4  Q.   You write back, "Yes, it's the senior.
5 I understand the dilemma.  Of course, I am not
6 technically a seller since my investment was
7 never intended to be part of the overall
8 allocation but just a bridge to get this deal
9 done.  Just let me know what he says.  Thanks."

10  Did you write that?
11  A.   I did.
12  MS. MARLIER:  May we have Division
13 Exhibit 71, please.  Can you start with the
14 second page?
15  Q.   Mr. Rabinovich, if you would let me
16 know if you are familiar with this email chain,
17 that would be great.
18  A.   I am familiar with it.
19  MS. MARLIER:  We move Division
20 Exhibit 71 into evidence, your Honor.
21  MR. MUNNO:  May I just have a moment,
22 please?
23  (Pause.)
24  MR. MUNNO:  No objection.
25  JUDGE MURRAY:  Received.

Page 2121

1  P. Rabinovich - Direct
2  (So received in evidence
3  as Division Exhibit 71.)
4  Q.   As of this point your father's
5 $250,000 loan had not yet been redeemed.
6 Correct?
7  A.   Correct.
8  Q.   So you write in the first email on the
9 second page, "Andy, what is the status of my

10 redemption of 250K?"  Do you see that?
11  A.   Yes.
12  Q.   Mr. Guzzetti writes back "Checked with
13 Patty."  Does that refer to Ms. Sicluna?
14  A.   Yes.
15  Q.   "150,000 came in yesterday.  We are
16 waiting on Bill Lex for 100,000.  Should be in
17 by July 1st.  If you want 1,950,000 call Patty
18 and we will put a sell ticket in for 150,000,
19 then put another in for 100,000 when it comes
20 in."
21  Do you see that?
22  A.   Yes.
23  Q.   This is new customer money coming into
24 the TDMM Cable investment.  Right?
25  A.   Correct.

Page 2122

1  P. Rabinovich - Direct
2  Q.   You write back "Am I still earning
3 interest on the 150,000 or is the new buyer?"
4 Correct?
5  A.   Correct.
6  Q.   Now, your father was redeemed on this
7 loan in two parts in June and July 2009.
8 Correct?
9  A.   I am not sure when exactly he was

10 redeemed.
11  Q.   But he was redeemed; right?
12  A.   He was redeemed, yes.
13  Q.   We can assume from this email it is
14 sometime after this email.  Correct?
15  A.   Yes.
16  Q.   During this time period were you
17 selling TDMM Cable to any of your customers?
18  A.   I am not sure if it was during this
19 time period but I certainly did sell TDMM Cable
20 Trust.
21  Q.   Let's shift to Benchmark.  With
22 respect to Benchmark, you only sold TDMM
23 Benchmark 09 to a few customers.  Right?
24  A.   Looks like seven or eight to be exact.
25  Q.   Was Benchmark first offered on

Page 2123

1  P. Rabinovich - Direct
2 August 25, 2009?
3  JUDGE MURRAY:  Counsel, I don't know
4 why we are testing his memory on things.
5  Q.   I will represent to you Benchmark
6 offered on August 25, 2009.
7  MR. MUNNO:  I object to "first
8 offered."  I don't know what that means.  Does
9 that suggest none of the sales force prior to

10 August 25th may have talked to a prospective
11 client who may have been interested before
12 August 25th?
13  Q.   I will rephrase.  I will represent to
14 you August 25, 2009 I believe is the date on the
15 PPM.
16  MR. MUNNO:  That is irrelevant but
17 okay.
18  Q.   As of August 2009, you knew you were
19 not staying at McGinn Smith; right?
20  A.   Well, we weren't sure at that point.
21  Q.   You weren't sure of what McGinn
22 Smith's future would be at that point; right?
23  A.   We weren't sure if McGinn Smith was
24 going to continue to support our office.  We
25 weren't sure.  We didn't know what McGinn
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1                Direct/Mayer
2 with it.
3                I wouldn't correlate it to the
4 general accounting of other projects and things
5 that I would argue were more important to Dave and
6 Tim.
7        Q.      Did you know with respect to
8 Firstline, did you know that Mr. Rabinovich's
9 father had made a $600,000 bridge loan to

10 Firstline 11B?
11        A.      I do recall Mr. Rabinovich's father
12 making a bridge loan for Firstline.  I don't
13 recall exactly which Firstline it was.
14        Q.      Do you recall the $600,000 figure?
15        A.      I do recall approximately that
16 number, yes.
17        Q.      And you knew at the time of that
18 bridge loan that McGinn Smith ticketed the
19 $600,000 from Stan Rabinovich's regular
20 investment, right?
21        A.      What I do recall is calling up to
22 either Patty or Dave Smith or Tim -- I don't
23 recall specifically -- I do recall some
24 communication going up saying "How do you want
25 this transaction to be done in the ticket system,"

Page 3410

1                Direct/Mayer
2 and they coming back with the information saying
3 "Just do it the way you would a regular one."
4        Q.      A regular investment?
5        A.      That's what I recall.
6                JUDGE MURRAY:  Off the record.
7                (Discussion off the record.)
8                JUDGE MURRAY:  Back on the
9 record.

10                MR. TOLCOTT:  Your Honor,
11 Michael Tolcott for respondent Lex.  My train
12 was about 15 minutes late this morning, and if
13 this is regarding admission of the Division's
14 exhibits, we communicated yesterday by e-mail
15 Lex's position and certain objections we had.
16 I wanted to be sure those were on the record.
17                I don't know if any were
18 admitted before we got here.
19                JUDGE MURRAY:  No.
20                MR. STOELTING:  Mr. Guzzetti's
21 counsel sent me an e-mail agreeing to all of
22 them, and then Mr. Lex's counsel sent an
23 e-mail objecting to some of them, and the
24 e-mail says "On the grounds that they do not
25 pertain to Mr. Lex and he is not a party to
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1                Direct/Mayer
2 them," and then he has a separate objection to
3 Exhibits 105 and 142.  "We object for the
4 additional reason that Mr. Lex never sold
5 Benchmark, and with respect to 248, we object
6 for the additional reason that it is dated
7 well after Mr. Lex's last sale."
8                JUDGE MURRAY:  My understanding
9 is you are going to give this list of exhibits

10 to the court reporter?
11                MR. STOELTING:  Yes, but there
12 is a couple of categories.  The first category
13 is the broker check.  These were stipulated to
14 before the case started.  The broker check
15 reports from the FINRA website, which are
16 Exhibits 479 through 486.  We realize that
17 those had not actually been received into
18 evidence per the transcript so we wanted to
19 make sure those were in.
20                JUDGE MURRAY:  Are respondents
21 aware of these exhibits?  Can you tell me
22 whether you have any objection or have you
23 cleared it with them?
24                MR. STOELTING:  I cleared it
25 with them.

Page 3412

1                Direct/Mayer
2                JUDGE MURRAY:  There is no
3 objection?
4                MR. MUNNO:  There is actually
5 an objection to this extent for Rabinovich,
6 Mayer and Rogers:  To the extent that the
7 Division is offering exhibits as regards a
8 specific respondent and that respondent
9 doesn't have an objection to it, that's fine,

10 but if it is being offered as against all
11 respondents who may not have received the
12 e-mail, we would object to that being received
13 in evidence as regards Rabinovich, Mayer and
14 Rogers.
15                To the extent that these
16 exhibits don't involve our clients, it should
17 not be in evidence as against our clients.
18                JUDGE MURRAY:  I won't know
19 until I go through all of this what I think is
20 relevant to the allegations against your
21 clients and against the other clients.
22                I am overruling that
23 objection.
24                MR. TOLCOTT:  I have the same
25 objection, your Honor.

February 11, 2014 Transcript Pages 3409 - 3412
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AN ORDER (A) DISALLOWING CERTAIN DISPUTED CLAIMS, (B) 
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William J. Brown, as Receiver (“Receiver”) of McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. 

(“MS & Co.”), respectfully submits this Memorandum of Law in support of his Ninth 

Claims Motion (“Motion”) for an Order (a) disallowing certain Disputed Claims, (b) 

reclassifying certain Disputed Claims, (c) applying a Preferential Payment Offset to certain 

Disputed Claims, and (d) expunging paper claims. 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

During the course of this Receivership, the Receiver has filed eight motions 

objecting to certain investor claims on various grounds, with the ultimate goal of 

maximizing amounts available for distribution to investors defrauded by MS & Co.  The 

Receiver has also made a First Distribution of ten percent (10%) on a rolling basis to 

investors with allowed claims.  The Receiver now seeks to complete the First Distribution 

and commence a second distribution to investors with allowed claims and to proceed to 

conclude the receivership estate.   

Accordingly, the Receiver has reviewed those claims classified as “Disputed” 

in the Receiver’s books and records which remain unresolved by the claims objection 

motions previously filed by the Receiver (collectively, the “Disputed Claims”).  The 

Disputed Claims include (a) claims which should be disallowed on account of the claimants’ 

fraudulent or inequitable misconduct, (b) claims which should be reclassified, (c) claims 

held by recipients of preferential payments, and (d) paper claims for which there is no basis 

for payment in the Receiver’s books and records. 

The Receiver intends that this Motion will resolve the remaining Disputed 

Claims and will conclude the claims objection process in this Receivership, allowing the 
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Receiver, when the Motion is decided, to make a second distribution to investors with 

allowed claims and to begin to conclude this Receivership.   

STATEMENT OF FACTS 

MS & Co. was a broker-dealer registered with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission (“SEC”) with its headquarters in Albany, New York from 1981 to 2009.  From 

2003 through 2010, the broker-dealer was owned by David L. Smith (“Smith” or “David 

Smith”), Timothy M. McGinn (“McGinn”), and Thomas E. Livingston.   

On April 20, 2010, the SEC filed a Complaint initiating the above-captioned 

action (Docket No. 1).  Also, on April 20, 2010, this Court granted a Temporary 

Restraining Order (Docket No. 5), which, among other things, froze certain assets of the 

above-captioned Defendants and Relief Defendants, and appointed the Receiver as 

temporary receiver with respect to numerous entities controlled or owned by Defendants 

McGinn and Smith, including those listed on Exhibit A to the Preliminary Injunction Order 

entered in this action (Docket No. 96) (collectively, the “MS Entities”).  Brown Dec’l. ¶4.1

On July 26, 2010, following a hearing, the Court entered an order granting 

the SEC’s Motion for a Preliminary Injunction and appointing the Receiver as receiver, 

pending a final disposition of the action (“Preliminary Injunction Order”) (Docket No. 96).   

On August 3, 2010, the SEC filed an Amended Complaint (Docket No. 100).  

On June 8, 2011, the SEC filed a Second Amended Complaint (the “Complaint”) (Docket 

No. 334).  On February 17, 2015, the Court issued its Memorandum-Decision and Order 

(Docket No. 807) (“MDO”) granting the SEC’s motion for summary judgment.  The Court 

1 “Brown Dec’l. ¶ __” refers to the Declaration of William J. Brown dated October 9, 2019 filed in support of 
the Motion. 
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entered judgments in favor of the SEC in 2015 (Docket Nos. 835, 836, 837).  The MDO was 

affirmed on appeal in June 2016. 

Generally, McGinn and Smith “orchestrated an elaborate Ponzi scheme, 

which spanned over several years, involved dozens of debt offerings, and bamboozled 

hundreds of investors out of millions of dollars.”  MDO at 7.  McGinn and Smith raised 

over $136 million between 2003 and 2010 in over twenty unregistered debt offerings, 

including the Four Funds -- FAIN, FEIN, FIIN, and TAIN -- and various Trust Offerings, 

by representing that investor money would be “invested,” when instead it was “funneled” 

into various entities owned or controlled by McGinn and Smith.  That money was then 

used to fund unauthorized investments and unsecured loans, make interest payments to 

investors in other entities and offerings, support McGinn’s and Smith’s “lifestyles,” and 

cover the payroll at MS & Co.  MDO at 7. 

A. Claims Procedure 

On March 9, 2012, the Receiver filed a Motion (“Claims Procedure Motion”) 

(Docket No. 466) for entry of an Order approving, among other things, the Receiver’s 

proposed procedure for the administration of claims against the MS Entities.   

On March 27, 2012, the Court entered an Order granting the Claims 

Procedure Motion (Docket No. 475), which was subsequently amended by an Order dated 

April 17, 2012 (“Claims Procedure Order”) (Docket No. 481).  Each investor and known 

creditor of the MS Entities was mailed on May 1, 2012 an Access Notice describing the 

claims process and enclosing (i) Notice of the Claims Bar Date and Claims Procedure and 

(ii) a Claim Form.  Brown Dec’l. ¶9.  A confidential password providing access to the 

Receiver’s Claims Website at www.mcginnsmithreceiver.com (“Claims Website”) was also 
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provided.  Id.  If an investor or creditor agreed with the description and amount of their 

claim(s) as listed on the Claims Website and the claim(s) were not listed as disputed, 

contingent or unliquidated, the investor or creditor did not need to take any further action.  

Id.  All other investors and creditors needed to timely file a paper claim before the bar date 

of June 19, 2012, as further described in detail on the Claim’s Website.  Id.  

The Claims Procedure Order established June 19, 2012 (“Bar Date”) as the 

deadline for creditors and investors to file claims (if required) against the MS Entities.  

Claims Procedure Order at 2.  Any investor who was required to file a paper claim and who 

failed to do so on or before the Bar Date is barred, estopped, and enjoined from asserting 

such claim.  Id.

In accordance with the Claims Procedure Order, nearly six hundred creditors 

and investors timely filed paper claims prior to the Bar Date.  Brown Dec’l. ¶11.  In 

addition, more than 3,127 claims of investors and creditors were included on the schedules 

posted by the Receiver on the Claims Website in accordance with the Claims Procedure 

Order.  Id.  

The Receiver conducted an initial review of the paper claims timely filed by 

creditors and investors in accordance with the Claims Procedure Order and determined it 

was necessary to establish a reserve as to investor claims totaling approximately $23,617,190 

since those claims have been listed by the Receiver as disputed, contingent or unliquidated.   

Brown Dec’l. ¶12. 
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B. Plan of Distribution Process 

On December 30, 2015, the Receiver filed a Motion (Docket No. 847) (“Plan 

Distribution Motion”) to seek approval of (i) a plan of distribution of assets of the MS 

Entities to investors (“Plan of Distribution”); and (ii) interim distributions to investors with 

allowed claims scheduled or timely filed in accordance with the Claim Procedure Order. 

On October 31, 2016, the Court entered a Memorandum-Decision and Order 

(Docket No. 904) (“Plan Distribution Order”) granting the Plan Distribution Motion, 

overruling objections, approving the Plan of Distribution, and allowing the Receiver to 

make interim distributions as set forth in the Plan Distribution Motion. 

Among other things, the Plan of Distribution sets forth the following priority 

of claims: (1) administrative expenses; (2) secured creditors; and (3) investors.  Further, the 

Plan of Distribution provides for a reserve for disputed claims to allow the Receiver to make 

initial distributions, but to also provide for funds to be reserved until any objections to 

disputed claims can be heard and decided by final order of the Court.  As of July 25, 2019, 

$6,578,150.28 has been distributed to investors with allowed claims as a First Distribution.  

Brown Dec’l. ¶15.  The Receiver estimates that investors will receive, at most, a recovery 

ranging from approximately 13.5% to 21.7%, depending upon the outcome of certain claim 

objections.  See Third Written Status Report of the Receiver (Docket No. 925).   

C. Claims Motions 

On September 21, 2017, the Receiver filed a Motion (Docket No. 937) (“First 

Claims Motion”) to seek disallowance of certain filed paper claims that were duplicative of 

the corresponding claims granted by the Receiver.  On November 9, 2017, the Receiver filed 

a Statement (Docket No. 957) in furtherance of the First Claims Motion, adjourning the 
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First Claims Motion with respect to those duplicative investor paper claims filed by 

investors whose Receiver-granted claims have been disputed by the Receiver.  On December 

28, 2017, the Court entered an Order granting the First Claims Motion and disallowing the 

duplicative paper claims other than with respect to those filed by investors with disputed 

claims (Docket No. 966). 

On February 15, 2018, the Receiver filed a Motion (Docket No. 974) 

(“Second Claims Motion”) to seek disallowance of certain filed paper claims for which there 

is no basis for payment in the books and records of MS & Co.  On April 13, 2018, the Court 

entered an Order granting the Second Claims Motion and disallowing the paper claims.  

On March 19, 2018, the Receiver filed a Motion (Docket No. 984) (“Third 

Claims Motion") to seek disallowance of certain claims of former MS & Co. brokers.  On 

May 4, 2018, the Receiver filed a Reply (Docket No. 1002) to the Response of Frank 

Chiappone (Docket No. 995) to the Third Claims Motion.  On March 6, 2019, the Court 

entered an Order granting the Third Claims Motion and disallowing the brokers’ claims 

(Docket No. 1043) (“Broker Claims Order”). 

On July 6, 2018, the Receiver filed a Motion (Docket No. 1009) (“Fourth 

Claims Motion”) to seek disallowance of paper claims filed by certain preferred investors  

and to apply a preferential payment offset to the distributions to be made to preferred 

investors.  On August 27, 2018, the Receiver filed a Reply (Docket No. 1020) (“Reply”) to 

the Opposition filed by certain preferred investors (Docket No. 1019) to the Fourth Claims 

Motion.   
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On October 16, 2018, the Receiver filed a Motion (Docket No. 1025) (“Fifth 

Claims Motion”) to seek to apply a preferential payment offset to the distributions to be 

made to preferred investors One City Center Associates and Burton Fisher.   

On March 6, 2019, the Court entered an Order granting the Fourth Claims 

Motion and the Fifth Claims Motion, and disallowing the Preferred Investors’ paper claims 

and applying the preferential payment offset (Docket No. 1042) (“Preferential Offset 

Order”). 

On April 25, 2019, the Receiver filed a Motion (Docket No. 1052) (“Sixth 

Claims Motion”) to seek to apply a preferential payment offset to the distributions to be 

made to investor Lesley Levy and equitably subordinating the claims of Lesley Levy. 

On May 22, 2019, the Receiver filed a Motion (Docket No. 1056) (“Seventh 

Claims Motion”) to seek to apply a preferential payment offset to the distributions to be 

made to certain preferred investors that received certain fund redemptions. 

The Sixth and Seventh Claims Motions remain sub judice. 

On September 12, 2019, the Receiver filed a Motion (Docket No. 1067) 

(“Eighth Claims Motion”) to seek to disallow certain claims asserted by the Smith family, 

or, in the alternative, offset their outstanding judgment obligations by any distributions 

owed in connection with such claims.  The return date of the Eighth Claims Motion is 

October 31, 2019. 

D. Remaining Disputed Claims 

The remaining Disputed Claims may be described as follows:  (1) claims that 

should be disallowed due to the claimants’ inequitable and/or fraudulent conduct; (2) 

claims improperly classified as investor claims and requiring reclassification and/or 
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disallowance; (3) claims asserted by recipients of preferential payments that should be offset 

by such preferential payments; and (4) paper claims for which there is no basis for payment 

in the Receiver’s books and records.    

E. Claims to be Disallowed due to Inequitable or Fraudulent Conduct 

1. Remar-Lex Claims 

Among the claims disallowed by the Broker Claims Order were those asserted 

by William F. Lex (“Lex”).  Lex was a registered representative at MS & Co. who sold 

$45,536,000 of MS & Co. private placements between September 2003 and July 2009.  

Third Claims Motion at 6.  The Court disallowed Lex’s claims, as described in the Third 

Claims Motion, based on Lex’s violations of the Securities Act.  Broker Claims Order at 8. 

Following the entry of the Broker Claims Order, the Receiver discovered that 

Lex holds two additional disputed claims that were not included in the Third Claims 

Motion (“Remar-Lex Claims”).  Brown Dec’l. ¶28.  The Remar-Lex Claims are held jointly 

by Lex and Kimellen Remar (“Remar”) and are described in greater detail on Exhibit A to 

the Motion.  Presumably in accordance with the instructions set forth in the Claims 

Procedure Order, Remar and Lex filed a paper claim for each Remar-Lex Claim (“Remar-

Lex Paper Claims”), which paper claims are exactly duplicative of the Remar-Lex Claims 

and are described on Exhibit A to the Motion.  Id.

2. Stanley Rabinovich Claims 

In the Broker Claims Order, the Court also disallowed the claims of Philip S. 

Rabinovich (“Philip Rabinovich”), who was a senior vice president, registered 

representative, and an investment advisor with MS & Co.  As with Lex, the Court 

disallowed Philip Rabinovich’s claims based on his violations of the Securities Act.  Broker 

Claims Order at 8.   
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As described in more detail below, in 2007 and 2009, Phillip Rabinovich 

arranged for his father, Stanley Rabinovich (“Stanley Rabinovich”), to provide so-called 

“bridge loans” to allow McGinn and Smith to close private placement offerings.  By 

providing bridge loans, Stanley Rabinovich allowed certain offerings to close, at which time 

escrow could be broken and McGinn and Smith could access investor funds.  Brown Dec’l 

¶30; see also Palen Dec’l. ¶¶66, 99 (describing how, after investor funds left the escrow 

account, they were used to enrich McGinn and Smith personally, or to support MS & Co. 

or other MS & Co. entities).2  In October 2007, McGinn approached Philip Rabinovich 

about a “bridge loan” necessary to secure an asset for the First Line 07 Series B private 

placement.  See Broker Trial Tr. 2091:14-18.3  Philip Rabinovich arranged for Stanley 

Rabinovich to make a $600,000 loan to satisfy the shortfall, which McGinn promised to 

repay two to three months later.  Id. 2091:22-25.  Although this transaction was 

characterized as a “loan” by McGinn and Philip Rabinovich, there was no loan 

documentation and Stanley Rabinovich executed a subscription agreement as if he were an 

investor and received the same interest payments as other investors in Firstline 07 Series B.  

Id. 3409:17-3410:5. 

When new investors purchased Firstline 07 Series B notes, the incoming 

funds were improperly funneled directly to Stanley Rabinovich to pay off his loan.  In total, 

between April 23, 2008 and June 16, 2008, MS & Co. brokers made twenty sales of Firstline 

2 “Palen Dec’l” refers to the Declaration of Kerri L. Palen, dated January 10, 2014, submitted in support of the 
SEC’s allegations  in the Broker Proceeding, which is attached, together with the relevant exhibits, to the 
Brown Dec’l as Exhibit 1. 
3 “Broker Trial Tr.” refers to the transcript of the public hearing held before the Chief Administrative Law 
Judge (“ALJ”) in the Administrative Proceeding commenced by the SEC on September 23, 2013 as to certain 
MS & Co. brokers (including Philip Rabinovich) (“Broker Proceeding”), an excerpt of which is attached to the 
Brown Dec’l as Exhibit 2. 
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07 Series B notes to pay back Stanley Rabinovich’s $600,000 loan in its entirety.  Id. 2101: 

14-24; see also Palen Dec’l. ¶ 89, Ex. 21.  At the time, the Firstline 07 Series B notes were 

more than four years away from maturing.  Id. 2109: 24-2110: 4. 

McGinn approached Philip Rabinovich for another bridge loan in January 

2009 to close the TDMM Cable 09 private placement.  Broker Trial Tr. 2115: 14-22.  

Stanley Rabinovich “loaned” $250,000 to TDMM Cable 09, which, again, was treated like 

an investment, although characterized as a loan.  Id. 2116:23 - 2117:2.  As with the Firstline 

07 Series B transaction, McGinn agreed to put $250,000 worth of TDMM Cable 09 notes 

out for secondary market sales in order to improperly repay Stanley Rabinovich’s loan.  Id.

2117: 3-7.4  Stanley Rabinovich’s loan to TDMM Cable 09 was improperly repaid in full 

from the secondary sales.  Id. 2122: 6-12.  Both improper and illegal repayments of more 

than $850,000 to Stanley Rabinovich deceived legitimate investors that the minimum 

funding for those investments had been achieved and allowed Stanley Rabinovich to be 

repaid when legitimate investors were not repaid.  Brown Dec’l. ¶32. 

Stanley Rabinovich and his wife, Eva Rabinovich, collectively assert fourteen 

disputed claims against the Receivership in an aggregate amount of $3,393,540.33 

(collectively, the “Rabinovich Claims”), as described in greater detail on Exhibit A to the 

Motion.  Brown Dec’l. ¶33.  Stanley and Eva Rabinovich filed twelve paper claims 

4 In the Broker Proceeding, the ALJ found in the Initial Decision entered on February 25, 2015 that Stanley 
Rabinovich made the $600,000 bridge loan to purchase an asset for the Firstline 07 Series B transaction and 
the $250,000 bridge loan to TDMM Cable 09 to close the offering.  Donald. J. Anthony, Jr., et al., Initial 
Decision Release No. 745 (Feb. 25, 2015), 110 SEC Docket 19, modified by Order on Motions to Correct 
Manifest Errors of Fact in the Initial Decision, Administrative Proceedings Release No. 2528 (Apr. 9, 2015), 
111 SEC Docket 5, at 59.  As a result of the Supreme Court of the United States’ opinion in Lucia v. S.E.C., 
138 S.Ct. 2044 (2018), the Initial Decision was vacated and the Broker Proceeding was remanded for 
reassignment to a new administrative law judge.  The SEC subsequently entered into a settlement with the 
brokers to avoid a re-trial.
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(collectively, the “Rabinovich Paper Claims”), also described on Exhibit A to the Motion, 

presumably in accordance with the instructions in the Claims Procedure Order.  Id.

F. Improperly Classified Claims 

In reviewing the records and records of MS & Co., the Receiver has 

discovered that certain Disputed Claims were classified incorrectly as investor claims at the 

time that the Claims Procedure Order was entered.  Those claims requiring reclassification 

are described in greater detail below and are set forth on Exhibit B to the Motion.   

1. ADT Claims 

ADT Security Services, Inc. (“ADT”) filed two paper claims (collectively, the 

“ADT Claims”), as described on Exhibit B to the Motion, asserting claims against TDM 

Cable Funding LLC (“TDM”) and Prime Vision Communications LLC (“Prime Vision”) 

arising out of a certain Assignment Agreement dated October 6, 2006 between ADT and 

TDM (“Assignment Agreement”).  Brown Dec’l. ¶35.  Pursuant to the Assignment 

Agreement, TDM purchased from ADT a certain Balloon Promissory Note for $3,165,762 

made by Prime Vision to ADT (“ADT Note”).  Id.  The Assignment Agreement included an 

agreement that, if the ADT Note were paid or subsequently sold, the proceeds would be 

divided and a portion would be paid to ADT Security.  The ADT Note has not been paid or 

sold.  Consequently, ADT does not hold or assert any other claims against the Receivership.  

Id.

2. HSK Claim 

107th Street Associates, LLC (“107th Street”), a Receivership entity, 

borrowed one million dollars (“Loan”) from HSK Funding, Inc. (“HSK”) pursuant to a 

certain Promissory Note dated October 9, 2007.  Brown Dec’l. ¶36.  The Loan was secured 

by a pledge of stock in an entity called United Security Assurance, Inc.  The debt obligation 
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owing to HSK was mistakenly described as an investor claim and was assigned claim 

number 5328D (“HSK Claim”), as shown on Exhibit B to the Motion.  Id.  The HSK Claim 

is a loan secured by collateral and should be reclassified as such and as an unsecured claim 

for any deficiency.  Id.

G. Preferential Payments 

Certain investors (“Preferred Investors”) received preferential payments in the 

form of interest payments and redemptions (“Preferential Payments”) made by two MS 

Entities, McGinn Smith Funding LLC (“MSF”) and TDM.  Brown Dec’l. ¶37.  MSF and 

TDM were essentially “conduit entities”: funds raised from investors in various Trust 

Offerings would first be deposited into an escrow account and net proceeds then advanced 

to MSF or TDM, which was supposed to then purchase the underlying investment.  Palen 

Dec’l. ¶ 64.  MSF and TDM, however, were used by McGinn and Smith to facilitate 

“improper and fraudulent transfers” between and among McGinn and Smith, personally, 

and other MS & Co. Entities.  Id. ¶ 64, 66.   

The Preferential Payments were made in late 2009 and early 2010, at the 

height of the Ponzi scheme and when many other MS & Co. investors ceased receiving any 

payments on account of their investments. Brown Dec’l. ¶38.  Four of the Preferred 

Investors received preferential interest payments from TDM starting in January 2010, going 

through to April 2010.  Two of the Preferred Investors received preferential interest 

payments and redemptions from MSF starting in November 2009, through to April 2010.  

Id.  The funds used to make these Preferential Payments were not generated through the 

legitimate investment operations of TDM or MSF but instead were amounts raised from 

certain Trust Offerings or deposited directly by other investors or MS & Co. Entities.  
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Consequently, the Preferred Investors received Preferential Payments comprised of funds 

that they were not entitled to receive, at a time when most other investors in MS & Co. were 

no longer receiving payments on account of their investments.  Id.

The Preferential Payments are set forth in greater detail on Exhibit C-1 to the 

Motion.  Presumably in accordance with the instructions in the Claims Procedure Order, 

three of the Preferred Investors filed paper claims (collectively, the “Preferred Investor Paper 

Claims”), which are set forth in greater detail on Exhibit C-2 to the Motion.  Brown Dec’l. 

¶39. 

H. Paper Claims 

Generally, most investors holding Disputed Claims followed the Receiver’s 

instructions in the Claims Procedure Order and submitted paper claims exactly duplicative 

of their claims marked “Disputed” on the Receiver’s website.  Brown Dec’l. ¶40.  In 

addition, other investors who do not hold Disputed Claims also filed paper claims, either in 

the exact amount of their Receiver-granted claims shown on the Receiver’s Website, or 

presumably because they disagreed with the amounts of their claims as set forth on the 

Receiver’s Website or because they assert claims which were not shown on the Receiver’s 

Website.  Id.  These paper claims may be categorized as Discrepant Claims, Duplicate 

Claims, No Liability Claims, Non-Receivership Claims, Excluded Claims, and Untimely 

Claims, each as described in greater detail below. 

ARGUMENT 

The district court has broad power and discretion to determine relief in an 

equity receivership.  See S.E.C. v. Elliott, 953 F.2d 1560, 1566 (11th Cir. 1992); S.E.C. v. Basic 

Energy & Affiliated Res., Inc., 273 F.3d 657, 668 (6th Cir. 2001).  “In equity receiverships 
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resulting from SEC enforcement actions, district courts have very broad powers and wide 

discretion to fashion remedies and determine to whom and how the assets of the 

Receivership Estate will be distributed.”  S.E.C. v. Detroit Mem’l Partners, LLC, No. 1:13-cv-

1817-WSD, 2016 WL 6595942 at *5 (N.D. Ga. Nov. 8, 2016) (internal quotation omitted).  

This includes the discretion of district courts to classify claims sensibly in order to achieve 

and equitable result.  See S.E.C. v. Enter. Trust Co., 559 F.3d 649, 652 (7th Cir. 2009); S.E.C. 

v. Infinity Grp. Co., 226 Fed. Appx. 217, 218 (3d Cir. 2007).  “It is within a district court’s 

discretion to approve a distribution plan proposed by a receiver—and to defer to the 

receiver’s choices for the plan’s details—so long as the plan is ‘fair and reasonable.’” Sec. & 

Exch. Comm’n v. Amerindo Inv. Advisors Inc., No. 5-CV-5231, 2016 WL 10821985, at *3 

(S.D.N.Y. May 20, 2016) (quoting Sec. Exch. Comm’n v. Wang, 944 F.2d 80, 81 (2d Cir. 

1991)) (internal citation omitted).

A. The Remar-Lex Claims and the Rabinovich Claims Should be 
Disallowed 

District courts have used their broad equitable powers to disallow claims in 

equity receiverships based on the conduct of the claimants.  For example, the courts have 

permitted equity receivers to exclude claimants from receiving distributions where such 

claimants were involved in the “development, implementation, and/or marketing” of a 

fraudulent Ponzi scheme.  See S.E.C. v. Byers, 637 F.Supp.2d 166, 183 (S.D.N.Y. 2009) 

(approving distribution plan where employees who actively participated in a Ponzi scheme 

were excluded from receiving distributions).  Courts have also approved distribution plans 

disallowing claims of investors who recklessly participated in a Ponzi scheme.  See S.E.C. v. 

Forte, Civil Nos. 09-63, 09-64, 2012 WL 1719145 at *3 (E.D.Pa. May 16, 2012).  A person 

acts recklessly if “he or she realizes or, from the facts which he [or she] knows, should 
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realize that there is a strong probability that harm may result.”  Id. at *3.  Investors who, by 

their reckless behavior, further a Ponzi scheme “are not ‘innocent’ and so are not entitled to 

the same relief as truly innocent investors.”  Id.

1. The Remar-Lex Claims Should be Disallowed 

The Remar-Lex Claims should be disallowed for the same reasons that Lex’s 

Claims were disallowed by this Court.  In the Broker Claims Order, the Court “agree[d] 

with the Receiver that the brokers’ claims should be disallowed because of their conduct; the 

brokers should not be permitted to share in the recovery with the innocent investors who 

were harmed by that conduct.”  Broker Claims Order at 5.  Accordingly, the Court 

disallowed each of Lex’s claims included in Exhibit A to the Third Claims Motion.  Id. at 9.  

The Court also ordered that the rights of the Receiver to object to the claims of all investors 

or claimants on any other basis was expressly preserved.  Id.  For the same arguments set 

forth in the Third Claims Motion, the Remar-Lex Claims listed on Exhibit A to the Motion 

should be disallowed and the Remar-Lex Paper Claims should be disallowed. 

2. The Rabinovich Claims Should be Disallowed or, in the Alternative, 
Offset by Amounts Received 

The Rabinovich Claims should be disallowed on account of Stanley 

Rabinovich’s inequitable conduct.  Stanley Rabinovich actively participated in McGinn and 

Smith’s fraudulent scheme by providing bridge loans that allowed McGinn and Smith to 

secure assets for and close private placement offerings.  By assisting McGinn and Smith 

with closing certain private placement offerings, Stanley Rabinovich enabled McGinn and 

Smith to break escrow and access investor funds, which funds were then used to enrich 

McGinn and Smith or to support other MS & Co. Entities.  As a result, legitimate investors 

were deceived into believing that the offerings had raised sufficient funding to close.  
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Moreover, although Stanley Rabinovich was treated like an investor, and received regular 

investment payments like an investor, his loans were repaid long before the investments 

matured.  Further, he was repaid directly from funds subsequently invested by new 

investors, which new investments were solicited by MS & Co. brokers specifically to repay 

the bridge loans.  The subsequent investors who took Stanley Rabinovich’s place now stand 

to recover a small percentage of their original investment.  Stanley Rabinovich assisted 

McGinn and Smith with the implementation of the Ponzi scheme and was repaid directly 

from the scheme.  Accordingly, based on his participation in the Ponzi scheme, the 

Rabinovich Claims should be disallowed, and all paper claims filed by Stanley Rabinovich 

and Eva Rabinovich should be disallowed. 

In the alternative, if the Rabinovich Claims are not disallowed, any 

distributions otherwise owed on account of the Rabinovich Claims should be offset by 

$850,000, representing the improper and illegal repayments made to Stanley Rabinovich on 

account of the bridge loans.  Stanley Rabinovich was improperly paid from secondary sales 

of certain MS & Co. investments, which were sold by MS & Co. brokers specifically to pay 

back Stanely Rabinovich’s bridge loans long before the underlying investments were due to 

mature.  Stanley Rabinovich received full redemptions of the bridge loans while other 

similarly situated investors were not redeemed.  Accordingly, it would be most equitable, if 

the Rabinovich Claims are not disallowed, to apply the Rising Tide Methodology to offset 

any distributions owed in connection with the Rabinovich Claims by the improper and 

illegal redemptions received by Stanley Rabinovich.  See infra Sect. D.1. 
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B. The ADT Claims Should be Reclassified and Disallowed 

The ADT Claim should be reclassified as an unsecured claim, because it is a 

claim for an unsecured contractual payment obligation owing by TDM and is not an 

investor claim.  Further, the ADT Claim should be disallowed and the paper claims 

submitted by ADT should be disallowed: the obligation of TDM to make payments to ADT 

in conditioned on the payment or sale of the ADT Note, neither of which conditions has 

occurred.  Thus, there is no basis upon which ADT may assert a claim for payment against 

either TDM or Prime Vision. 

C. The HSK Claim Should be Reclassified to a Secured Claim 

The HSK Claim represents a secured debt obligation owing by 107th Street to 

HSK and is not an investor claim.  Accordingly, the HSK Claim should not be treated as an 

investor claim but instead should be reclassified as a secured claim to the extent of the value 

of the collateral and an unsecured claim for any deficiency, and treated as such in 

accordance with the Plan of Distribution. 

D. Preferred Investor Distributions Should be Adjusted with the Rising 
Tide Methodology 

1. The Rising Tide Method Promotes Equality Among Investors 

The Rising Tide method is a common methodology used for determining the 

distribution of assets in a Receivership.  Recently, in the Preferential Offset Order, the Court 

approved the application of an offset calculated using the Rising Tide methodology to 

reduce the distributions made by the Receiver to certain investors who received preferential 

interest payments and supplemental payments in the Preferential Offset Order.  See 

Preferential Offset Order at 6-7.  The Court has also approved the use of the Rising Tide 
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methodology in the calculation of the Collateral Recovery Offset.  See Plan Distribution 

Order at 12-13.   

As described in the Fourth, Fifth, and Seventh Claims Motions, the Rising 

Tide method subtracts pre-receivership payments received by an investor from the investor’s 

pro rata distribution, reducing that investor’s pro rata distribution on a dollar-for-dollar 

basis.  U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Comm’n v. Lake Shore Asset Mgmt. Ltd., No. 07 C 3598, 

2010 WL 960362 at *7 (N.D. Ill. Mar. 15, 2010).  The Rising Tide methodology “brings the 

recovery of claimants who received no payments during the course of the Ponzi Scheme 

equal to those claimants who did receive payments during the course of the Ponzi Scheme.”  

In re Receiver, No. 3:10-3141-MBS, 2011 WL 2601849 at *2 (D.S.C. July 1, 2011).  

Otherwise, a straight pro rata distribution of funds, irrespective of pre-receivership 

payments, “would be inequitable because it would unfairly elevate investors who received 

those pre-receivership payments.”  Lake Shore, No. 07 C 3598, 2010 WL 960362 at *9. 

2. A Preferential Payment Offset Should be Applied to Preferred Investor 
Distributions 

Distributions made to Preferred Investors on account of their Receivership 

claims (collectively, the “Preferred Investor Claims”) should be adjusted to account for the 

receipt of the Preferential Payments using the Rising Tide methodology (“Preferential 

Payment Offset”).   

It would be inequitable to allow the Preferred Investors to retain the 

Preferential Payments and to receive full distributions on account of their Preferred Investor 

Claims.  Applying the Preferential Payment Offset to distributions owed on account of the 

Preferred Investor Claims will put all investors in a more equal position.  The Preferential 

Payment Offset has a similar effect as the Collateral Recovery Offset, which reduces 
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investor distributions on a dollar-for-dollar basis based on amounts recovered on account of 

their claims from sources other than the Receivership.  The Preferential Payment Offset will 

reduce distributions to the Preferred Investors by amounts paid to them by TDM or MSF, as 

applicable, as interest and/or redemption payments.  These Preferential Payments were paid 

improperly from funds raised from various offerings or deposited by investors.  Indeed, two 

of the Preferred Investors received payments from entities in which they hold no 

investments. 

As a result of the Preferential Payment Offset, the Preferred Investors instead 

would have a credit against future distributions in the amount of the Preferential Payment 

over the amount of the interim first distribution.  Of the six Preferred Investors described in 

the Motion, only two Preferred Investors would not receive a first distribution as a result of 

applying the Preferential Payment Offset.  Further, this credit would not prevent them from 

receiving further distributions if the credit were to be consumed by the amount of the 

distribution.   

To permit the Preferred Investors to retain the Preferential Payments, without 

a corresponding dollar-for-dollar reduction in the amount of their pro rata distribution on 

account of their Preferred Investor Claims, would result in the Preferred Investors retaining 

excess amounts improperly paid to the Preferred Investors by MS & Co. from funds that 

should have been invested, and not used to make payments of principal and interest.  The 

Preferential Payment Offset promotes equality among all investors by accounting for this 

unfair treatment. 

To apply the Preferential Payment Offset, the Receiver has used the books 

and records of MS & Co. to determine when the Preferential Payments were made, to 
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whom, and from which MS & Co. entity.  Brown Dec’l. ¶41.  The Preferential Payment 

Offset was then applied to the aggregate first distribution which would otherwise be made 

on account the Preferred Investors’ claims in TDM or MSF, as applicable.  Id.  If the 

Preferred Investor does not hold a corresponding claim in TDM or MSF, the Receiver 

applied the Preferential Payment Offset to their other claims asserted against MS & Co.  Id.

The Preferred Investor Paper Claims should be disallowed because there is no 

basis in the books and records of MS & Co. to justify a distribution on account of such 

paper claims.  Two Preferred Investor filed paper claims that are exactly duplicative and in 

the same amount as their Preferred Investor Claims scheduled on the Claims Website.  

These Duplicate Claims can be disallowed since the Motion deals with the claims of those 

Preferred Investors who are scheduled on the Receiver’s Claims Website, as described 

above.  One Preferred Investor filed a paper claim for an amount lower than the claim 

amount scheduled on the Receiver’s Website in an attempt to account for the Preferential 

Payments received, as described in Exhibit C-2.  The Receiver has determined, consistent 

with the approach taken in the Fourth, Fifth, and Seventh Claims Motions, that it is most 

equitable to apply the Preferential Payment Offset to the distributions to be made on 

account of the Preferred Investors’ scheduled claims.  Accordingly, this Discrepant Paper 

Claim should be disallowed and the Preferential Payment Offset applied to distributions 

made on account of the Preferred Investor’s full, scheduled claim amount. 

E. The Paper Claims Should be Disallowed 

The Paper Claims described on Exhibits D-1 - D-3 to the Motion should be 

disallowed because there is no basis in the books and records of MS & Co. to justify a 

distribution on account of the Paper Claims.  Expunging the Paper Claims will further the 
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main objective of equality in Receivership distributions by preserving amounts for 

distribution to investors with legitimate claims.   

Exhibit D-1 is comprised of Discrepant Claims, which are paper claims filed 

by investors for the same investments as their Receiver-granted claims but in different 

amounts.  All Receiver-granted claims are based upon the records of McGinn Smith and 

represent principal balances.  The differences in the amounts of the Receiver-granted claims 

and the Discrepant Claims filed by investors are likely due to one or more payments 

previously received by the investor in the form of principal or interest.5  If the Discrepant 

Claims are not disallowed, investors will receive distributions in excess of the principal 

balance of their investments reflected in the books and records of McGinn Smith. This will 

dilute the pool of receivership funds available to pay investors with valid claims and will 

result in disparate treatment of holders of Discrepant Claims as compared to other investors. 

As such, the Discrepant Claims should be disallowed.  

Exhibit D-2 is comprised of Duplicate Claims.  Duplicate Claims represent 

paper claims filed by investors that are exactly duplicative and are in the exact amount of 

the claims listed on the Claims Website.  The Duplicate Claims should be disallowed 

because there is no legal or equitable basis for payment of the same claim more than once. 

Exhibit D-3 is comprised of (a) No Liability Claims, (b) Non-Receivership 

Claims, (c) Excluded Claims, and (d) Untimely Claims.  No Liability Claims represent filed 

paper claims for investments which are not reflected in the books and records of McGinn 

Smith for a variety of reasons. No Liability Claims include filed paper claims for 

5 In the Plan Distribution Order, the Court approved the Receiver’s method of calculating investor claims 
based upon the principal balance of the investment as reflected in McGinn Smith’s books and records, as well 
as the treatment of certain pre-Receivership interest payments as a reduction in principal. See Plan Distribution 
Order at 15 (Docket No. 904); Plan of Distribution at 6-7 (Docket No. 847). 
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investments of which there is no record. No Liability Claims should be disallowed because 

there is no basis in the books and records of McGinn Smith for the payment of such claims. 

Non-Receivership Claims represent filed paper claims for investments in 

entities that are not part of the Receivership.  These entities include, among others, MS Real 

Estate Capital Partners, LLC, Integrated Alarm Services, Inc., and Coventry CareLink 

Holding Corp. (“Coventry”) (sometimes also known as CMS Financial Services). Because 

these entities are not included in the Receivership, the Receiver cannot make distributions 

on account of these claims with Receivership funds.  In the case of Coventry claims, those 

investors hold direct claims against Coventry and not against the Receivership estate. 

Accordingly, Non-Receivership Claims should be disallowed. 

Excluded Claims represent paper claims filed for investments in entities that 

were excluded from the Receivership by the Plan Distribution Order. These entities include 

SAI Trust 00 and SAI Trust 03, which were foreclosed on and liquidated before the 

commencement of the Receivership.  The Excluded Claims should be disallowed because 

holders of such claims are not entitled to any further distribution following the foreclosure 

and liquidation of these entities. 

Finally, Untimely Claims represent paper claims filed after the Bar Date of 

June 19, 2012.  Investors who filed Untimely Claims are barred, estopped, and enjoined 

from asserting such claim, pursuant to the Claims Procedure Order.  The Untimely Claims 

should be disallowed because the holders of such claims are not entitled to assert such 

claims against the Receivership. 
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F. Summary Proceedings are Appropriate 

The Receiver has sought to provide the claimants asserting Disputed Claims 

with appropriate notice and sufficient time to respond to the Motion.  Accordingly, the 

Receiver has complied with the claim objection and notice procedures set forth in the 

Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure (“Bankruptcy Rules”) as a form of best expression 

of law.  Bankruptcy Rule 3007 requires that a claim objection must be filed and served at 

least thirty days before any scheduled hearing and that the objection must be served on the 

claimant by first class mail.  Fed. R. Bankr. P. 3007(a)(1), (2).   

In accordance with Rule 7.1 of the Local Rules of Practice for the United 

States District Court for the Northern District of New York, the Receiver has filed and will 

serve the Motion on each claimant listed on the Exhibits attached to the Motion at least 

thirty-one days in advance of the scheduled return date of November 21, 2019.  The 

Receiver will give notice of the Motion to the Securities and Exchange Commission, all 

parties who have filed a Notice of Appearance in this action by ECF, and all creditors and 

parties in interest via the Receiver’s website (www.mcginnsmithreceiver.com), as well as 

posting at the top of the Receiver’s website an explanation of the Motion.  Additionally, 

notice by first class mail will be given to each of the claimants.  Brown Dec’l. ¶42. 

The Receiver requests that the Court enter an order granting the relief 

requested in this Motion without a hearing with respect to those claims for which an 

objection is not timely interposed.  Disallowance or adjustment of a claim without a hearing 

where there is no factual dispute is an appropriate and preferred procedure in federal 

receivership cases.  See S.E.C. v. Elliott, 953 F.2d 1560, 1566 (11th Cir. 1992) (holding that 

summary proceedings are favored in federal receivership cases because a summary 
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proceeding “reduces the time necessary to settle disputes, decreases litigation costs, and 

prevents further dissipation of receivership assets”); United States v. Fairway Capital Corp., 433 

F. Supp. 2d 226, 241 (D. R.I. 2006) (“Receivership courts can employ summary procedures 

in allowing, disallowing and subordinating claims of creditors”). 

CONCLUSION 

The Receiver requests that the Court enter an Order substantially in the form 

attached to the Motion as Exhibit E (a) disallowing certain Disputed Claims, (b) 

reclassifying certain Disputed Claims, (c) applying a Preferential Payment Offset to certain 

Disputed Claims, and (d) expunging paper claims, together with such other and further 

relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

Dated:  October 9, 2019 
PHILLIPS LYTLE LLP 

By    /s/ Catherine N. Eisenhut                        
William J. Brown (Bar Roll #601330) 
Catherine N. Eisenhut (Bar Roll #520849) 
Attorneys for Receiver 
Omni Plaza 
30 South Pearl Street 
Albany, New York 12207 
Telephone No. (518) 472-1224 

and 

One Canalside 
125 Main Street 
Buffalo, New York 14203 
Telephone No.: (716) 847-8400 

Doc #4429578.3
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